
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 2 November 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

Tuesday, 10 November 2020 at 10.00 am 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using Skype for Business 

 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor John Dawson, Councillor 
Phil Dilks, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Charmaine Morgan and Councillor Ian 
Stokes 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 10 

November 2020 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Finance, Economic 

Development and 

Corporate Services 

Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 
1.   Comments from members of the public 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 

discretion 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Disclosure of interests  

   
4.   Action notes of the meeting held on 22 September 2020 (Pages 3 - 15) 

   
5.   Updates from previous meeting (Pages 17 - 19) 

   
6.   Quarter 2 Financials 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as 

at the end of September 2020 

(Pages 21 - 52) 

   
7.   Quarter 2 Performance 

Report detailing South Kesteven District Council’s performance in key service 

areas as the pandemic continues, setting out performance reporting for quarter 

two of 2020/21 

(Pages 53 - 73) 

   
8.   Invest to Save 

Report setting out the use of the Invest to Save reserve ahead of the budget 

framework proposals for 2021/22 

(Pages 75 - 81) 

   
9.   Council Tax Support Scheme 

Report reviewing the Council’s Local Council Tax Support scheme in advance 

of the 2021/22 financial year 

(Pages 83 - 92) 

   
10.   Special Expense Areas 

Report reviewing the costs currently charged to the Special Expense Areas 

and examining the guiding principles adhered to when allocating costs to the 

Special Expense Areas 

(Pages 93 - 98) 

   
11.   Work programme 

To agree the 2020/21 work programme and note items on the Cabinet Forward 

Plan 

(Pages 99 - 108) 

   
12.   Change date of meeting - 12 January 2021 

To consider changing the date of the meeting currently scheduled for 12 

January 2021 

 

   
13.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstance decides is urgent 
 

   



 
 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Tuesday, 22 September 2020, 10.30 am 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 

Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
 

Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman) 
 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
 

Officers Other Members present 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Paul Thomas (Strategic Director, Growth) 
Richard Wyles (Interim Director of 
Finance, (Section 151 Officer)) 
Shahin Ismail (Head of Law and 
Governance) 
Nova Roberts (Head of Customer 
Experience) 
Debbie Roberts (Corporate Project 
Officer) 
Zena West (Scrutiny Officer) 
Shelley Thirkell (Democratic Officer)  

Councillor Ashley Baxter 

Councillor Virginia Moran 
 

 
 

1. Comments from members of the public 
 
No comments from members of the public were received.  
 
 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

2. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
The membership of the Committee had changed following the Annual meeting 
of full Council on 17 September 2020.  Councillor Linda Wootten no longer 
served as a Committee member and Councillor Ian Stokes had joined as a full 
Committee member.   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Bellamy.  
 
3. Disclosure of interests 
 
No interests were disclosed.   
 
4. Action notes of the meeting held on 28 July 2020 
 
The action notes of the meeting held on 28 July 2020 were considered by the 
Committee.  
 
Members had requested at a previous meeting for information relating to the 
location and value of Council owned properties, that was still yet to be 
received.  The Interim Director for Finance informed members that some of 
the information relating to the request was of a commercially sensitive nature 
and would only be able to be circulated to members at that time.   
 
ACTION 
 
1. Details of the location and value of South Kesteven District Council 

properties be circulated to all Members.  Members were to note that 
the information would be restricted at that time and not for 
publication. 

 
Councillor Morgan requested for her apologies to be reflected in the notes, 
rather than being listed as present, she had submitted her apologies prior to 
the meeting 
 
ACTION 
 
2. That Democratic Services amend the attendance at the meeting to 

reflect Councillor Morgan’s apologies.  
 
A Member queried minute number 83, New Build Council Housing.  The 
Member noted that no definitive answer had been provided in relation to the 
number of Council Houses that had been built so far and how many were 
anticipated to be built that year. It was agreed that the information was 
available and that it would be provided to Members via the Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Planning.  
 
 

4



 
 

ACTION  
 
3. That the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning advise all 

Members how many Council Houses had been built and how many 
would be completed during the current year.   

  
5. Updates from previous meeting 
 
The Chairman noted that updates from the previous meeting had been 
discussed during consideration of agenda item 4.    
 
6. Quarter 1 Financials 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources introduced the Finance 
update report, for the period of 1 April – 31 July 2020.   
 
The Committee had during the current financial year, received regular reports 
that monitored and assessed the financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.  
The report presented to members at the meeting reverted to the style of 
budget monitoring received in the previous financial year.  The report included 
the amendments to the budget that were presented to Council on 17 
September 2020.  
 
The Revenue Budget – General Fund 2020/21 that was set at £19.175m by 
full Council on 2 March 2020, had been increased at the meeting of Annual 
Council on 17 September 2020 to £24.914m.  Table 1 of the report detailed 
Budget Amendments to the General Fund, which included 2019/20 Grants 
received and use of the Maintenance Reserve.  The deficit forecast as at 31 
July 2020 for the General Fund £1.315m.  Officers provided a detailed 
breakdown of the General Fund Summary and the Forecast Outturn.  
Additionally, the significant changes were also highlighted to members.   
 
The General Fund Capital Programme 2020/21 was amended to £3.522m by 
Council on 17 September 2020.  Details of individual Capital Schemes were 
detailed at Appendix C of the report.  General Fund Reserves 2020/21 
showed that there was a balance of £2.843m in the budget stabilisation 
reserve which may be required to fund the forecast deficit of £1.315m.  
 
The Revenue Budget 2020/21 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) had a 
budgeted surplus of £5.373m which was required to fund future investment in 
stock growth and property maintenance.  HRA Forecast Outturn Position 
showed a number of variances, including a £50,000 reduction in income due 
to the re-phasing of rent on new builds and an increase in £100,000 in write-
offs due to non-collection of debt.  Write-offs were however in line the current 
bad debt provision which was set out in the Business Plan.  Covid-19 has 
meant that there was a delay in repairs and maintenance at Council 
properties, which had resulted in a forecasted under-spend of £380,000.  

5



 
 

Those repairs were due to be re-scheduled later in the financial year subject 
to any property access constraints.   
 
The HRA Capital Programme 2020/21 budget was currently £17.616m, which 
was approved at Council on 17 September 2020.  Capital Schemes were 
detailed at Appendix E to the report.  The forecast movements on the HRA 
Reserves 2020/21 had been amended to reflect the reduced financing which 
was required to fund the Capital Budget.   
 
Cashflow management remained an important area of focus given the 
unpredictability of the Council’s income streams, particularly in relation to 
Council Tax and Business Rates and its legal obligations to pay precepts and 
contractual payments.  The Government had provided some assistance with 
the deferral of the repayment of specific grants for three months (although this 
period had now expired).  Despite the climate, cashflow remained positive and 
collection rates were performing well.  Collection rates were benchmarked on 
a monthly basis with Lincolnshire partners and the profile remained consistent.   
 
Members of the Committee considered the report and asked the Cabinet 
Member and officers a number of questions and further information was 
provided.  
 
Details relating to housing growth were included within the report, there was 
an original capital allocation of £21.5m but had since been reduced to £12.8m.  
That allocation was for in respect of property adaptations, new builds and the 
re-acquisition of previously purchased Right to Buy Properties.   
 
A reference in the report to Historic England Grants was a contribution to 
South Kesteven in relation to part funding the Shop Front Scheme.   
 
Members agreed that it would be useful to see a comparison of the level of 
Reserves from previous years.  It was advised that there would be a 
downward trend in available reserves.  This was due to utilising them to fund 
Capital Schemes, rather than the Council taking on commercial loans, which 
provided a cost benefit. A member advised that information relating to 
reserves was of public interest, there had been requests to see details of the 
reserves.  The Chairman noted that the matter would be discussed during the 
agenda item on Performance.  The Cabinet Member advised that any queries 
relating to reserves should be forwarded to him in the first instance, if 
required.   
 
It was requested that a monthly update be provided to Members on the budget 
deficit, especially as the current financial climate was fast changing.  In 
addition to this it was queried if there was any detail on what areas were being 
considered to help cover the deficit.  Officers advised that the assumptions 
made to compile the budget were made some months earlier and so it was 
appropriate to challenge those assumptions in the current climate and assess 
whether specific spending plans were still deliverable or necessary.  The 

6



 
 

Chairman noted that officers and the Cabinet Members would monitor the 
situation and if there were any significant changes or impacts, that would then 
be reported to the Members.   
 
ACTION 
 
1. That the Committee be provided with updates on the budget deficit, 

should there be any significant changes to the forecast position.  
 
Confirmation was requested regarding support to South Lincolnshire Citizens 
Advice Bureau and if that was still included within the budget.  The Member 
was advised that this was allocated within the current budget.  
 
A Member expressed their concerns regarding the impact of Brexit and that 
due to the Covic-19 Pandemic, there had not been any updates relating to it 
provided.  The Leader of the Council advised that a group of Members had 
met to discuss the impact of Brexit on South Kesteven.  There was the 
potential for that group to reconvene and all members be provided with a 
briefing in November 2020.   
 
ACTION 
 
2. That an update on the financial impact of Brexit be circulated to 

Members in November 2020.  
 
A member reminded the Committee about previous discussion to abolish 
specific special expense areas and was advised that this was still on the work 
plan.   
 
Clarification was sought regarding the Cashflow forecast at Appendix G to the 
report, as there were two sets of figures. The numbers showed the forecast 
cashflow against the actual cashflow.  The total showed a figure of all the 
previous months, however that would change as the year progressed.   
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman thanked officers for a thorough report and 
appreciated that the pandemic had imposed many difficulties and challenges 
on the budget monitoring work.   
 
7. Quarter 1 Performance 
 
The Leader of the Council presented to Members the Quarter 1 Performance 
Report which detailed performance now the Council had moved into the ‘Re-
start’ phase of the Covid-19 pandemic recovery plan.   
 
Throughout the pandemic the Council had worked hard to ensure an essential 
service had remained. The waste collection service remained uninterrupted 
with staff redeployment to help with the increased volumes of collection.   
 

7



 
 

Some council services had resumed such as Environmental Health Food 
hygiene inspections.  They had been working with nursing homes and schools 
to ensure the safety of communities within the district. 
 
An autumn arts schedule had been put in place and the arts centres had been 
re-opened in a limited way for regular users to meet in a Covid-19 safe way.  
Socially distanced films would be starting soon at the Stamford Arts Centre.   
 
Despite the restrictions and challenges brought on by the pandemic and the 
subsequent lockdown, overall the Council had performed well.  The 
performance was a testament to officers throughout the authority.  At the start 
of the lockdown there were only around 40 agile workers, with that having 
increased considerably, to almost all the office-based workforce.   
 
The Interim Director of Finance was invited by the Leader to highlight the key 
points featured in the report.   
 
The Cabinet had agreed a framework on 16 June 2020, to set out a recovery 
plan from the effects of Covid-19.  Key activities of the ‘Re-start’ phase were:  
 

 Deliver growth of the economy; 

 Housing that met the needs of residents; 

 Strong communities with high quality facilities; 

 A clean and sustainable environment; and  

 A high performing council.  
 
The report highlighted each area of the plan and what that Council had 
committed to achieve.   
 
An overview of performance for Quarter 1 2020/21 against agreed indictors 
was set out in the report, with details provided within the appendices, these 
were as follows:  
 

 Rents performance; 

 Council Tax Performance; 

 Non-domestic rates Performance; 

 Planning process performance; 

 House build performance; 

 Complaints and Compliments performance; and 

 Waste Performance.  
 
Covid-19 had a detrimental impact to collection activity to date and this was 
primarily due to the suspension of all recovery activity due to the lockdown.  
The focus of the revenue teams during that time was on providing support and 
advice to residents and businesses.  The team would ordinarily have issued 
approximately 11,000 council tax reminders and 1,300 business rates 
reminders.   

8



 
 

 
The annual council tax bills were issued 10 days before lockdown 
commenced, collection was down by 1.06% which was £905,383 and the net 
liability had increased by £2,802.726.  Deferral requests for council tax 
collection in April and May to later in the year totalled £242,000.  Direct Debit 
cancellations totalled £141,000 for April to July, which represented a 0.5% 
rejection rate.   
 
A balance remained of £436,305 from the Government allocated Council Tax 
Support hardship which, when awarded, would assist with reducing collectable 
liability.  South Kesteven had seen an increase in the number of residents in 
receipt of Council Tax Support of 661 since 1 April 2020.  The cost of the 
scheme was shared between South Kesteven and the precepting authorities, 
Lincolnshire County Council and Lincolnshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner.   
 
It was not possible to make a meaningful comparison with previous years’ 
collection performance, due to the high number of businesses who had 
received 100% rate relief for 2020/21.  As at 31 August 2020 the collection 
rate was 46.50%, which was £11,197.710 of the net collectible £24,000,000.   
 
A total of £20.3m had been awarded in Expanded Retail Discount to 958 
businesses.  The Revenues Team had worked closely with InvestSK Limited 
to administer the business grants, as part of the Covid-19 Government 
support measures.  
 
Rents collection also had not seen any formal recovery since March 2020, 
with all court action suspended.  Proactive contact had been made with 
residents in order to provide support. Discretionary Housing Payments had 
been allocated to those residents in need which had left a balance of 
£220,000 for the remainder of the year.   
 
Collection of rents was only 0.5% below target for Quarter 1, actual rent 
collected was £5,961,486.  There would be ongoing challenges for the 
recovery of rents for the remainder of 2020/21.   
 
A member of the committee thanked officers for the work that had been put 
into the production of the report and queried whether bonus payments made 
to refuse collectors would continue. The member was advised that there had 
been a national pay settlement of 2.75%. Staff had received an increase of 
2% from April 2020, and would receive the additional 0.75% backdated to 
April, now that the national award had been agreed. The Council also had 
agreed to apply a market supplement for waste operatives and front-line street 
scene staff which was to continue until March 2021.   
 
There were concerns around the viability of recouping deferred payments for 
business rates and council tax, given that there may be considerable job 
losses which would have an inevitable impact.  It was queried as to what 

9



 
 

terms would be used to recoup the deferred payments.  Council tax debt 
would mean an increase in instalments, due later during the Council Tax year.  
That would carry a risk in residents’ ability to meet those payments, there 
were only a small number of deferrals, which were detailed in the report.  
There were a large number of businesses that had been given business rate 
relief, meaning that they did not have to pay rates for that year.  Those 
provided with relief were within sectors facing difficulties, such as retail and 
hospitability.     
 
There was great concern about those residents who were self-employed and if 
there was any assistance provided by the council.  It was advised that support 
for the self-employed was not covered by local authorities but that there were 
a number of national support schemes launched by the Government that 
residents should access if they needed to.   
 
A member asked if planning performance had increased and raised concerns 
around the time it took for Customer Services to answer and transfer calls.  
The Leader advised that the Chief Executive was aware of the concerns and 
that the issue was being investigated.  The planning backlog was reducing 
with additional planning meetings to improve performance.    
 
The Chairman was keen for performance information to be available in the 
public domain.  He had been advised that performance reports would be 
available on the website, within a month of the end of each Quarter.   
 
ACTION 
 
1. Officers to ensure that Quarterly Performance Reports would be 

available on the South Kesteven District Council website, within 
one month of the end of each quarter.   

 
Members requested for figures to be provided on the number of staff from 
home and those who were at their usual place of work. They also requested 
that figures showing collection rates also show a figure for the amount not 
collected, so that it provided more context to performance.  Reference to 
street care services in the report should be broken down into a number that 
could be easily tracked and monitored.   
 
ACTIONS 
 
2. That the number of officers working from home and the number 

who were in their usual place of work were provided to members.   
 
3. Future reports to show figures for rates collected and those not 

collected.   
 
4. Street Care services to be broken down into a number that could be 

easily tracked and monitored 

10



 
 

 
Members agreed that they would like to see details on the number of houses 
that had been approved by Planning, against the number of houses that had 
been built.  This had been requested previously but been advised that it was 
difficult to monitor.  The Chairman agreed that the information would be useful 
to monitor performance and requested that more details be provided.  
 
ACTION 
 
5. That details were to be provided, if possible, on the number of 

houses built within the district versus those approved.   
 
It was requested that future reports showed more historical context for house 
builds.  It was also queried why members had been informed that the council 
had built 16 houses, but it was noted in the report only 2 affordable homes 
had been built.  A member advised that the 16 houses were a mixture of 
social housing and affordable housing; it was requested if that was confirmed 
and those figures were to be included within the next performance report.   
 
ACTIONS 
 
6. More historical context of house builds be included in future 

reporting 
 
7. Officers to clarify the number of affordable and social houses 

included within the figure of 16 houses built.   
 
The Committee noted the contents of the report, thanked officers for a detailed 
report and looked forward for the information being available to the public in 
due course.   
  
8. Loans from SKDC 
 
The Committee considered a report on an overview of loan arrangements in 
place between the Council and its wholly owned companies.   
 
The Committee at its meeting on 28 July 2020 requested that a report be 
provided which set out the loan arrangements which were currently in place.  
To date there had only been two loans agreed, these were for Gravitas 
Housing Ltd and EnvironmentSK Ltd.   
 
Loans were awarded as part of the Treasury Management Strategy and 
considered each year by Council as part of the Annual Budget.  The criteria of 
any loan being made with a Local Authority Controlled Company (LACC) was 
based on the receipt of a clear business plan.   
 
Gravitas Housing Ltd had a combination of a loan and an equity investment, 
which was approved by the Council.  The arrangement of £2.8m, 60:40 split, 

11



 
 

loan and equity were allocated in the Capital Programme in order to fund new 
housing development using land owned by the Council.  The funding was 
approved by Council on 2 March 2017 and released following a meeting of the 
(then) Shareholder Committee on 3 April 2017.     
 
The loan was structured on a commercial basis and was set at 2% above 
prevailing Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) rates.  The loan was set at 
4.03%, based on the principal being repayable from retained profits upon sale 
of developed properties or maturity on 31 March 2025, whichever was the 
soonest.   
 
EnvironmentSK Ltd began trading on 1 March 2019, to enable the grounds 
maintenance service to be delivered where there was a requirement for a loan 
to purchase vehicles and equipment. The sale of equipment to 
EnvironmentSK Ltd was set at £571,000 plus VAT, which was the original cost 
to the Council.  Loan affordability was assessed and a loan structure of 
£571,000, plus interest of 4% was put in place with a repayment period of 8 
years.  The loan was due to mature on 1 July 2027 and was paid in quarterly 
instalments.   
 
A councillor asked about ‘state aid’ rules and satisfaction of those regulations 
and what impact Brexit would have on that.  The Chairman noted that the 
position of Brexit was not known at that time, but the potential for change to 
regulations would be noted by Members.   
 
The Committee were interested in commercial loans and the pricing of risk, 
how was it priced when loaning to those companies.  Both loan arrangements 
were subject to audit and had been reviewed. External advice had been to 
price loans between the Council and its wholly owned company at 2% above 
PWLB rates, as a methodology for loans on a commercial basis.  Gravitas 
was building properties which in the event of any financial difficulty would 
transfer back to the Council.  EnvironmentSK Ltd provided an annual 
management fee, which could be withheld or deferred if there were any 
concerns.  
 
The Chairman asked about the security of risk, if there was a charge over the 
assets of EnvironmentSK Ltd.  Officers advised that there was not any charge, 
however the Council provided an annual budget of around £1m per annum 
which could be modified according to any concern around the performance of 
the business and its ability to repay the loan.   
 
The Chairman noted that as the companies were independent, it was 
important for the taxpayer to have a charge over those assets.  The 
Committee agreed that there was a need to seek legal advice and speak to 
the Directors of EnvironmentSK Ltd and Gravitas Housing Ltd about charges 
over assets.   
 
 

12



 
 

ACTION 
 
1. To seek legal advice and speak to the Directors of EnvironmentSK 

Ltd and Gravitas Housing Ltd regarding a charge over assets and to 
update Committee members accordingly. 

 
9. Growth Directorate Outturn 2019/20 
 
The Committee received a report on the financial and performance outturn of 
the Growth Directorate, following the presentation of the Council’s outturn 
position for 2019/20.   
 
The Council’s financial outturn was presented to the Committee on 30 June 
2020, during the review it was requested that further information be presented 
to analyse the operational and performance of the Growth Directorate.  It was 
noted to that meeting of the Committee there was a reported variance of 
44.4%.   
 
Accounting adjustments required in line with regulations had a significant 
impact upon the reported growth variance for the Directorate.  Table 1 showed 
the reported variance, table 2 showed the relevant accounting adjustments 
and table 3 showed the outturn position re-presented with the accounting 
adjustments removed.  It was seen that the re-stated outturn for Growth 
reduced the overall variance from 44.4% to 1%.  Table 4 showed a significant 
variance analysis for the Growth Directorate, details were provided which 
gave explanation of those significant variances.   
 
The Committee noted the contents of the report and thanked officers for the 
further detail which had been provided.   
  
10. Work programme 
 
The Committee received the Work Programme and the Cabinet’s Forward 
Plan.  The Chairman advised that he had been working with officers to 
consider items for the Work Programme and welcomed members’ 
suggestions.   
 
It was requested that consideration of the Special Expense areas be reviewed 
at the earliest opportunity so that it could be included in the 2021 budget.  The 
Cabinet Member advised if it were to be considered in January that would be 
too late in the process for 2021/22 budget setting.  The Chairman agreed to 
discuss with officers if there was potential for the item to be considered at the 
Committee meeting in November.   
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 

ACTION 
 
1. That the Chairman and Officer discuss the potential for the Special 

Expense Areas to be considered at the November meeting of the 
Committee.    

 
One member asked if it was possible look at Grantham’s High Street Fund Bid 
at the November meeting, rather than in January.   
 
ACTION  
 
2. To discuss with officers Grantham’s High Street Fund Bid and if 

possible, receive an update at the November meeting.  
 
The Chairman advised that he had been working with officers to consider 
items for the Work Programme and welcomed suggestions from the 
Committee.   
  
11. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstance decides is urgent 
 
A member queried if the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Committee could consider Spittlegate Heath Development and the 
archaeological finds.  There had been considerable archaeological discovery, 
those artefacts were to be sent to Lincoln for archiving.  The Member felt very 
strongly that they should remain within Grantham as part of the area’s 
heritage, with the potential for a boost in visitors to the area boosting the local 
economy.   
 
Officers advised that this was an area for the Culture Committee and as part 
of planning processes. The Chairman agreed to discuss the matter directly 
with the member who had raised concerns.   
  
12. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
It was agreed to exclude the press and public from the meeting during the 
discussion of the following item of business due to the likelihood that 
information that was exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contained information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information).  
 
13. St Martin's Park, Stamford Project Update on Financial 

Submissions 
 
The Committee received a report on St Martin’s Park, Stamford Project 
Update, on the financial submissions.   
 

14



 
 

The report detailed work that had been undertaken since a report was 
received by the Companies Committee on 30 June 2020.  Members noted the 
robust processes that were in place and provided detailed feedback to 
Cabinet on the report.  
  
14. Close of meeting 
 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 12.49. 
 
 
 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 2020/2021 

Actions from the meeting held 22 September 2020 
 

 Task Assigned to Progress/Comments 

92 

1. Details of the location and value of 
South Kesteven District Council 
properties be circulated to all 
Members.  Members to note that the 
information would be restricted at 
that time and not for publication. 

Chris Stratford 
(Interim Head of 

Housing) 

Complete - Information circulated to Members on 9 October 2020 

2. That Democratic Services amend 
the attendance at the meeting to 
reflect Councillor Morgan’s 
apologies.  

Democratic 
Services 

Complete - Completed by Democratic Services on 9 October 2020 

3. That the Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning advise all 
Members how many Council Houses 
had been built and how many would 
be completed during the current 
year.   

Cabinet Member 
for Housing and 

Planning 

Complete - Response circulated to Members on 28 October 2020 
 
 

94 

That the Committee be provided with 
updates on the budget deficit, should 
there be any significant changes. 

Alison Hall-Wright 
(Head of Finance) 

Complete - Action noted 
 

 

17

A
genda Item

 5



2 
 

 Task Assigned to Progress/Comments 

95 1. Officers to ensure that Quarterly 
Performance Reports would be 
available on the South Kesteven 
District Council website, within one 
month of the end of each quarter.   

Democratic 
Services 

Complete - Noted -  
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15078 

2. The number of officers working from 
home and the number who were in 
their usual place of work to be 
provided to members 

HR 
 

Complete - Information circulated to Members on 28 October 2020 
  
 

3. Future reports to show figures for 
rates collected and those not 
collected.   

Alison Hall-Wright 
(Head of Finance) 

Complete - Response received on 2 November 2020: 
 
The quarter two FEDCO report includes rates collected and not collected 
information for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates.  This will be included 
in future performance reporting to FEDCO. 

4. Street Care services to be broken 
down into a number that could be 
easily tracked and monitored 

Elaine Pepper 
(Head of 

Organisational 
Development) 

Complete - Response received on 2 November 2020: 
 
The complaints monitoring process is under review with the aim to provide 
more comprehensive feedback data on themes to highlight areas for 
improvements. The complaints data included in the quarterly FEDCO 
reports currently includes figures for simple calls for service, and omits data 
relating to stages 2 and 3 of the complaints process. This is being looked at 
for future performance reports. The current system used to track and 
monitor complaints is not able to provide a breakdown, this will be 
addressed in the near future so more detail can be given on the feedback 
Street Care services receive. 

5. That details were to be provided, if 
possible, on the number of houses 
built within the district versus those 
approved.   

Chris Stratford 
(Interim Head of 

Housing) 

Complete - Response for both actions circulated to Members 2 November 
 

6. More historical context of house 
builds be included in future reporting 

Chris Stratford 
(Interim Head of 

Housing) 

7. Officers to clarify the number of Chris Stratford Complete - Response received on 2 November 2020: 

18

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15078


3 
 

 Task Assigned to Progress/Comments 

affordable and social houses 
included within the figure of 16 
houses built.   

(Interim Head of 
Housing) 

 
The quarter two FEDCO report included the following information: 

 14 council (social) houses were built between 1st April 2019-31st 
March 2020 

o Kinoulton Court (10) 
o Earlesfield Lane (4) 

In quarter one 2020-21 2 affordable homes were recorded. 
Of the 266 dwellings completed by quarter two 2020, 20 dwellings are 
affordable housing, completed in Grantham, Stamford and Market Deeping. 
There have been no council homes completed in April-September 2020. 
 
The House Build performance dashboard shows total new homes built in the 
district, including the amount of affordable housing. Any council houses built 
will be included in the affordable homes figure. Total council houses built by 
SKDC can be reported in the year-end report. 
 

96 

To seek legal advice and speak to the 
Directors of EnvironmentSK and 
Gravitas regarding a charge over assets 
and to update Committee members 
accordingly. 

Shahin Ismail 
(Head of Legal) 

Not complete - To be completed, response currently being clarified 

98 

That the Chairman and Officer discuss 
the potential for the Special Expenses 
Programme to be considered at the 
November meeting of the Committee, to 
assist with it be included within the 
2021/22 budget setting.    

Democratic 
Services 

Complete - To be discussed at next meeting of Committee in November 

 

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
10 November 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 

         
  

 

Finance update report: April – September 2020 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of September 2020. 
The report covers the following areas: 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA 

 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 

Tel: 01476 406051 

Email: Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 29 October 2020 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 2 November 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

2 November 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to: 

21

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

- Review and note the forecast 2020/21 outturn position for the General Fund and 
HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of September 2020 and identify 
any variances that require further action. 

 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been provided with regular finance 

reports that have been monitoring and assessing the financial impact on the Council of the 

Covid–19 pandemic.  This report continues in the style of budget monitoring that the 

Committee received during the last financial year. 

2 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – General Fund  

2.1 The budget set by Council on 17 September 2020 was £24.675m.  Subsequent 

amendments to the budget framework have increased the General Fund net cost of 

service budget to £25.034m which is shown at Table 1 below.   

 

Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 

 

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  24,675 

August 2020 2019/20 Grants received 199 

August 2020 Maintenance Reserve 40 

September 2020 Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 50 

October 2020 Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 70 

Total  25,034 

 

2.2 Table 2 shows a forecast deficit as at 30 September 2020 of £366k.  This reduction from 

£1.315m as at 31 July 2020 is mainly due to the reduction in proposed alteration works to 

council offices in Grantham and the fourth tranche of Covid funding announced on 

22 October for £118k. In addition, £230k has been awarded from the Cultural Recovery 

Fund although this will reduce the co-payment losses contribution shown in the table 

below. A full breakdown of all Covid funding can be seen in table 3 below.  Appendix A 

provides a detailed breakdown of the General Fund summary and the forecast outturn 

position is shown below.  

Table 2 – General Fund Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend  

Forecast 
Variance  

Forecast 
Variance 
against 

Amended 
Current 
Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & Operations 7,582 8,752 8,556 (196) (2.2%) 

Finance, Legal & 
Democratic 

4,171 6,113 5,851 (262) (4.3%) 

Growth 6,091 8,751 7,896 (855) (9.8%) 

Transformation & Change 3,871 3,985 3,967 (18) (0.4%) 

22



 
 

HRA Recharge (2,558) (2,566) (2,566) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 19,157 25,035 23,704 (1,331) (5.3%) 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(236) (107) (107) 0  

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

302 148 148 0   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

72 72 72 0  

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

Net Budget Requirement 15,181 21,034 19,703 (1,331)   

General Funding (15,860) (15,860) (15,860) 0   

Covid-19 specific funding 0 (1,801) (1,919) (118)  

Co-payment losses 
contribution* 

0 (1,400) (1,100) 300  

Total Funding  (15,860) (19,061) (18,879) 182  

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

679 (658) (458) 200   

Net Budget Deficit 0 1,315 366 (949)   

*the figure shown is provisional and will depend on the actual net income losses declared in accordance with the 

Government scheme criteria. 

2.3 In summary the Council has received the following Covid-19 funding support: 

Table 3 – Covid-19 funding 

Funding Amount (£) Allocation Details 

Tranche 1 64,622 Mixture of Adult Social Care Relative 
Needs Formula (87%) and Settlement 
Funding Assessment (13%) 

Tranche 2 1,416,290 Allocation based on a per capita basis, 
and a 65:35 split between county and 
district authorities 

Tranche 3 194,639 Allocation 93% upper tier and 7% 
lower tier authorities based on 
population and deprivation  

Tranche 4 117,868 Similar allocation method to tranche 3  

Re-opening High 
Street’s Grant 

126,000  

Income losses 
scheme 

TBA 75% of income losses beyond 5% of 
planned income.  Full allocation not yet 
known as dependent upon income 
recovery levels 

Total 1,919,419  

*Furlough grant of £210k is included in net cost of services at table 2 and so is not listed in the above 

table.  

2.4 In addition to the above funding, there is a further announcement due in respect of leisure 

centre financial support. 

23



 
 

Appendix B provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each Directorate 

along with variance comments and Appendix C shows a dashboard of significant income 

streams. 

3 General Fund Capital Programme 2020/21 

3.1 The budget set by Council on 17 September 2020 for the 2020/21 General Fund Capital 

programme is £3.522m. Table 4 summarises the General Fund Capital forecast outturn 

position as at 30 September 2020.  

Table 4 – General Fund Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 

Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
% 

Commercial & Operations 1,770 1,847 1,720 (127) (6.9%) 

Finance, Legal & Democratic  50 55 66 11 20.0% 

Growth 1,590 1,620 1,230 (390) (24.1%) 

Total Expenditure 3,410 3,522 3,016 (506) (14.4%) 

Financed By:      

Capital Grant and Contributions:      

- Disabled Facility Grant (860) (860) (700) (160)  

- Historic England (162) (100) (100) 0  

Capital Reserve  (755) (755) (780) 25  

Revenue Reserve Funding      

      -    Shop Front Scheme (90) (28) (28) 0  

- Local Priorities Reserve   (453) (431) (453) 22  

- Regeneration 0 (290) (290) 0  

- ICT 0 (55) (55) 0  

- S106 0 (12) (9) (3)  

Useable Capital Receipts (1,090) (991) (601) (390)  

Total Financing (3,410) (3,522) (3,016) (506)  

 

3.2 Details of the individual capital schemes and variances are included in each directorate 

are shown at Appendix D.   

4 General Fund Reserves 2020/21 

4.1 Appendix E details the General Fund forecast reserve movements for 2020/21, line 17 

details that there is balance of £2.843m on the budget stabilisation reserve which may be 

required to fund the projected budget deficit of £366k detailed in Table 2. 

5 Revenue Budget 2020/21 – Housing Revenue Account 

The current 2020/21 HRA Revenue Budget is £5.373m. The budgeted surplus is fully 

utilised to fund future investment in stock growth and property maintenance. Table 5 

shows the summary of movements: 

 

24



 
 

Table 5 – HRA Revenue Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

HRA Budget amendment £’000 

  (5,493) 

August 2020 2019/20 Budget carry forwards 120 

Total  (5,373) 

 

5.1 Table 6 shows the HRA forecast outturn position for 2020/21 as at 30 September 2020. 

Table 6 – HRA Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

 
£’000 

 
2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget 

 
% 

Income (25,637) (25,637) (25,162) 475 1.9% 

Expenditure 17,619 17,739 16,930 (809) (4.6%) 

Net Cost of HRA Services (8,018) (7,898) (8,232) (334) (4.2%) 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,778 2,778 2,718 (60)  

Interest and Investment Income (253) (253) (115) 138  

Surplus for the year (5,493) (5,373) (5,629) (256)  

 

5.2 Appendix F provides detail of the current HRA Revenue position along with variance 

comments. 

6 HRA Capital Programme 2020/21 

6.1 The budget set by Council on 17 September 2020 for the 2020/21 HRA Capital 

programme is £17.616m. Table 7 summarises the HRA Capital forecast outturn position 

as at 30 September 2020.  

Table 7 – HRA Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget 

 
% 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 2,300          1,900 1,500  (400)  (21.0%) 

ICT 430 30 20 (10) (33.3%) 

Repairs Vehicles 140 146 146 0 0.0% 

Refurbishment and Improvement 24,620    15,540 4,715 (10,825) (69.7%) 

Total Expenditure 27,490     17,616 6,381 (11,235) (63.8%) 

Financed By:      

Homes England Grant (5,650) 0 0 0  

HRA Capital Receipts Reserve (4,000) (4,000) (2,200) (1,800)  

HRA Improvement Reserve (400) 0 0 0  

Loan Repayment Reserve (1,350) (1,350) 0 (1,350)  

Major Repairs Reserve (8,560) (4,786) (4,161) (625)  

25



 
 

Property Development Reserve (7,500) (7,450) 0 (7,450)  

S106 (30) (30) (20) (10)  

Total Financing (27,490) (17,616) (6,381) (11,235)  

 

6.2 Details of the individual capital individual schemes and variances are included at Appendix 

G and detailed explanation of the new build forecast changes are included at Appendix H.   

7 HRA Reserves 2020/21 

7.1 Appendix I details the HRA forecast reserve movements for 2020/21, the reserve 

movements have been amended to reflect the reduced financing required to fund the 

capital programme forecast shown at Table 7. This together with the forecast surplus on 

HRA revenue as shown at Table 6 has resulted in increasing the overall reserves balance 

by £974k to £41.106m. 

8 Cash Flow Modelling 

8.1 Cash flow management remains an important area of focus given the unpredictability in 

the Council’s income streams, particularly Council Tax and Business Rates, whilst the 

Council has legal obligations to continue to pay precepts and contractual payments.  In 

April 2020 the Government reprofiled the monthly payment to them for their share of 

business rates and accelerated the initial payment of S31 grant which has assisted with 

the Council’s cash flows.  However, cash flow management remains a key focus and is 

reviewed on a daily basis.  The cash flow model has been updated and is shown at 

Appendix J.  A positive cash flow position is shown, and collection rates are performing 

strongly in the current climate.  The benchmarking of collection rates is undertaken on a 

monthly basis with Lincolnshire partners and there is a consistent profile with respect to 

overall performance: 

Table 8 – Collection Rates 

Target Information  Council Tax Business Rates Rents 
 

Annual collection 
rate 

Target is 98.68% Target is 99.16% 
 

Target is 98.50% 

Target Collection 
rate to end of 
September 2020 

56.74% 57.81% 48.45% 

Actual collection 
rate to end of 
September 2020 

55.86% 54.97% 48.29% 

 

9 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

9.1 A version of this report was presented to the Finance, Economic Development, Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 26 May 2020, 30 June 2020 and 28 July 

2020. The Committee requested that regular reports be presented at each Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meeting to ensure members were kept fully updated on the 

changing situation. 

10 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

10.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the Authority, as 

effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line 

26



 
 

with the budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring enables the 

early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

10.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2020/21 financial position for the Council 

and focuses on the position as at the end of September 2020. 

11 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

11.1 None 

12 Financial Implications  

12.1 These are included in the report and supporting appendices. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

13 Legal and Governance Implications  

13.1 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect of the 

financial position of the Council expenditure during the year. This is particularly important 

during the current crisis. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

14 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

14.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

15 Risk and Mitigation 

15.1 A risk register is attached at Appendix K and shows that all known current risks are 

recognised and associated mitigating actions are in place. 

16 Community Safety Implications  

16.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

17 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

17.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

18 Background Papers 

18.1 Determination of Budget 2020/21 and indicative budgets to 22/23 – General Fund, 

Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report

.pdf 

18.2 Outturn Position 2019/20 report 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27140/Outturn%20report%202019-

20%20GA.pdf 

18.3 Finance Impact Report – May 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf 

18.4 Finance Impact Report – June 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Repo

rt.pdf 

27

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27140/Outturn%20report%202019-20%20GA.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27140/Outturn%20report%202019-20%20GA.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25630/FinanceImpactReportP1.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26128/Financial%20Impact%20Report.pdf


 
 

18.5 Finance Impact and Budget Monitoring Report – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Repor

t.pdf 

18.6 Finance Update Report – April 2020 – July 2020 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Re

port%202020-21.pdf 

19 Appendices 

19.1 Appendix A – 2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

19.2 Appendix B – 2020/21 General Fund Significant Variance Analysis 

19.3 Appendix C – 2020/21 General Fund Significant Income Dashboard 

19.4 Appendix D – 2020/21 General Fund Capital Programme – Forecast Outturn 

19.5 Appendix E – 2020/21 General Fund Reserves Forecast Movements 

19.6 Appendix F – 2020/21 HRA Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

19.7 Appendix G – 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme – Forecast Outturn  

19.8 Appendix H – New Build Programme Summary update 

19.9 Appendix I – 2020/21 HRA Reserves Forecast Movements 

19.10 Appendix J – 2020/21 Cash Flow Forecast 

19.11 Appendix K – 2020/21 Risk Register 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

28

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s26634/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s27516/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%202020-21.pdf


Appendix A 

2020/21 General Fund Revenue Summary  
 

Description 

2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend  

Forecast 
Variance  

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & 
Operations 

7,582 8,752 8,556 (196) (2.2%) 

Finance, Legal & 
Democratic 

4,171 6,113 5,851 (262) (4.3%) 

Growth 6,091 8,751 7,896 (855) (9.8%) 

Transformation & 
Change 

3,871 3,985 3,967 (18) (0.4%) 

HRA Recharge (2,558) (2,566) (2,566) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 19,157 25,035 23,704 (1,331) (5.3%) 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(236) (107) (107) 0  

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

302 148 148 0   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

72 72 72 0  

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,114) 0   

Net Budget 
Requirement 

15,181 21,034 19,703 (1,331)   

Funding and Resources:         

Council Tax (7,840) (7,840) (7,840) 0   

Retained Business 
Rates, S31 Grant, 
Pooling Gain & 
Renewable energy 

(4,954) (4,954) (4,954) 0   

New Homes Bonus (1,814) (1,814) (1,814) 0   

Rural Grant (295) (295) (295) 0   

Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

(957) (957) (957) 0   

Covid-19 specific funding 0 (1,801) (1,919) (118)  

Co-payment losses 
contribution* 

0 (1,400) (1,100) 300  

Total Funding (15,860) (19,061) (18,879) 182   

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

679 (658) (458) 200   

Net Budget Deficit 0 1,315 366 (949)   

*the figure shown is provisional and will depend on the actual net income losses declared in 

accordance with the Government scheme criteria. 

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

2020/21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Commercial & Operations 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
to Current 

Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Building Control 805,239 (674,716) 130,523 95,556 (34,967) (26.8%) 

Commercial & 
Operations  262,900 0 262,900 284,400 21,500 8.2% 

Community 
Resilience 421,900 (100) 421,800 420,600 (1,200) (0.3%) 

Corporate Operations 3,604,800 (861,250) 2,743,550 2,704,575 (38,975) (1.4%) 

Environmental 964,800 (181,650) 783,150 767,250 (15,900) (2.0%) 

Licensing 135,200 (237,800) (102,600) (102,600) 0  0.0% 

Street Scene 6,100,600 (1,587,700) 4,512,900 4,386,600 (126,300) (2.8%) 

Total 12,295,439 (3,543,216) 8,752,223 8,556,381 (195,842) (2.2%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Corporate Operations 

Grounds maintenance contract changes agreed with contractor (Environment SK) resulting in 
general fund savings of (£35k) 

In year lease of office space rental at Council offices resulting in additional service charge 
income of (£30k) 

(65) 

Street Scene 

Fuel - Prices remain low with a year to date average price of approximately 87p per litre 
compared to an average in 19/20 of approx. £1.008 per litre and £1.033 per litre in 18/19 
resulting in savings of (£70k) 

Commercial Waste – The service continues to grow with an additional £20k annual sales value 
being achieved each month after lockdown was lifted. This has been partially offset by the 
increased costs of servicing the new customers e.g. fuel, disposal costs, additional staff time 
giving a net increase in income from the previous forecast of (£31k) 

Green Waste Collection – Further additional income of (£42k) has been received with 29,461 
households renewing their subscription for 2020/21 and 1,404 new households joining the 
service throughout the year. 94.1% of these households made their payment online with 
71.1% paying by direct debit.  It is anticipated that sales will begin to slow as we reach the end 
of the season, the reopening of household waste centres and more households having signed 
up in the early part of the year, however sales are still being made at a higher than anticipated 
rate with an anticipated further £10k income between September and December. 

(143) 

Total (208) 

 

31



Finance, Legal and Democratic 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
to Current 

Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Finance 2,530,481 (550,800) 1,979,681 1,944,681 (35,000) (1.8%) 

Benefits 19,654,400 (19,813,020) (158,620) (225,420) (66,800) 42.1% 

Corporate 2,886,054 (98,550) 2,787,504 2,647,525 (139,979) (5.0%) 

Legal & 
Democratic 1,497,800 (37,500) 1,460,300 1,413,266 (47,034) (3.2%) 

Revenue 
Services 603,750 (560,400) 43,350 70,550 27,200 62.7% 

TOTAL 27,172,485 (21,060,270) 6,112,215 5,850,602 (261,613) (4.3%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Finance 

In-year vacancy of the Procurement Lead role has resulted in an in year underspend which is 

offset by a reduction in the funding transfer from the Invest to Save reserve (£20k) 

(20) 

Benefits 

Additional in year recovery of benefits overpayments (£70k). 

(70) 

Corporate   

General reduction in anticipated forecast expenditure across several different cost centres 

(130) 

Legal and Democratic 

In-year vacancies within the service area has resulted in an underspend of (£15k). 

(15) 

 TOTAL (235) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



Growth 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
to Current 

Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts Centres 2,203,872 (231,357) 1,972,515 1,751,715 (220,800) (11.2%) 

St Martin’s Park 91,000 0 91,000 91,000 0  0.0% 

Development 
Management 1,281,221 (1,131,275) 149,946 135,233 (14,713) (9.8%) 

Growth Management 904,766 (157,801) 746,965 726,505 (20,460) (2.7%) 

Housing 1,628,640 (972,730) 655,910 631,140 (24,770) (3.8%) 

Invest SK 549,981 (10,069) 539,912 430,000 (109,912) (20.4%) 

Leisure Centres 3,125,584 (122,150) 3,003,434 3,027,026 23,592 0.8% 

Planning Policy 426,250 (37,446) 388,804 401,562 12,758 3.3% 

Property 
Development 2,039,579 (837,000) 1,202,579 701,725 (500,854) (41.6%) 

Total 12,250,893 (3,499,828) 8,751,065 7,895,906 (855,159) (9.8%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts Centres 

Successful Cultural Recovery grant application award of £230k – this will be offset with a 
reduction in future co-payment losses contribution for the Arts Centres. 

(230) 

Development Management 
A number of posts in Development Management are career graded which has resulted in a 
£27k underspend as officers progress their professional qualification. 

(27) 

Invest SK 
Following a review of the funding levels to ISK for the current financial year, a proportion of 
uncommitted budget has been returned to the Council which has resulted in an underspend 
of (£110k) 

(110) 

Property Development 
Reduction in proposed alteration works to council offices in Grantham has resulted in an under 
spend of (£500k) 

(500) 

TOTAL (867) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Transformation and Change 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget  

2020/21 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 
to 

Current 
Budget 

 

2020/21 
Outturn 

Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Customer Services 577,800 (59,850) 517,950 515,700 (2,250) (0.4%) 

ICT Services 1,823,990 (97,200) 1,726,790 1,714,390 (12,400) (0.7%) 

Organisational 
Development 988,650 (7,400) 981,250 981,250 0  0.0% 

Reputation, 
Consultation & 
Communications 335,500 (4,300) 331,200 329,850 (1,350) (0.4%) 

Transformation 451,809 (24,000) 427,809 426,309 (1,500) (0.4%) 

TOTAL 4,177,749 (192,750) 3,984,999 3,967,499 (17,500) (0.4%) 

 

34



  Appendix C 

          

2020/21 General Fund – Significant Income Dashboard 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(6,000)

(5,500)

(5,000)

(4,500)

(4,000)

(3,500)

(3,000)

(2,500)

(2,000)

(1,500)

(1,000)

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

£
'0

0
0

2020/21 Significant Income (cumulative by quarter)

Previous Budget Amended Budget Forecast Actuals

-1,350-1,150-950-750-550-350-15050

Green Waste Collection

Development Management

Licensing

Stamford Car Parks

Investment Property

Land Charges

Grantham Car Parks

Stamford Arts Centre

Miscellaneous Property

Stamford Market

Guildhall Arts Centre

Grantham Market

Bourne Market

Commercial Waste (net)

£'000

2020/21 Significant Income - Budget vs Forecast Outturn

2020/21 Current Budget 2020/21 Forecast Outturn

Significant Income 

Original  Current Forecast Forecast Forecast 

Budget Amended  Outturn Variance Variance 

  Budget £’000 £’000 % 

£’000 £’000       

Green Waste Collection (1,112) (1,214) (1,255) (41) (3.4%) 

Development Management (1,154) (822) (818) 4 0.5% 

Licensing (294) (238) (238) 0 0.0% 

Stamford Car Parks (820) (231) (231) 0 0.0% 

Investment Property (423) (227) (244) (17) (7.5%) 

Land Charges (233) (150) (150) 0 0.0% 

Grantham Car Parks (473) (136) (136) 0 0.0% 

Stamford Arts Centre (749) (103) (228) (125) (121.4%) 

Miscellaneous Property (114) (101) (76) 25 24.8% 

Stamford Market (173) (73) (73) 0 0.0% 

Guildhall Arts Centre (312) (44) (129) (85) (193.2%) 

Grantham Market (46) (20) (20) 0 0.0% 

Bourne Market (19) (7) (7) 0 0.0% 

Commercial Waste (net) (68) 22 (8) (30) 136.4% 

TOTAL (5,990) (3,344) (3,613) (269) (8.0%) 

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D 
General Fund Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  

 

Capital Scheme 
2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

2020/21 
Amended 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Variance Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  

Commercial           

CCTV Camera replacement 12 12 9 (3)  

Disabled Facilities Grant 860 860 700 (160) 
Recommendations continue to be received, but Covid-19 
self-isolation requirements have affected installations. 

Pool Vehicles 26 0 0 0  

Street Scene Vehicle 
Procurement 

81 145 145 0  

Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 0  

Uffington Rd - Washdown 
Facilities 

12 12 12 0  

Vehicle Replacement Programme 655 655 680 25 
Programme delivered as planned. Costs have increased 
due to price increase. 

Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 100 0  

Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 50 11 Government grant of £45k has been awarded to fund this. 

Finance, Legal & Democratic          

Financial System Upgrade 50 0 0 0  

Digital Services Compliance 0 55 55 0  

Payment Receipting System 0 0 11 11 
This cost relates to the final invoice for the new cash 
receipting system. 

Growth      

Bourne Corn Exchange - 
Renovations 

238 168 168 0  

Car Park Barriers 50 0 0 0  

Welham Car Park - Resurfacing 340 340 150 (190) 
Programme delayed following survey requirement. 
Commencement of works by the year end. Budget carry 
forward to be proposed. 

Welham Car Park - Security 24 9 9 0  

Welham Car Park - Lift 50 50 50 0  

37



Deepings LC - All Weather Pitch 200 0 0 0  

Heritage Action Zone - Grantham 120 120 120 0  

GAC - Renovations 175 175 4 (171) 
Delays in starting works – budget needs to be carried 
forward to 2021/22 

GAC - Digital Boards 15 0 0 0  

Meres LC - Lighting 10 10 10 0  

SK Stadium Hammer Cage 12 12 12 0  

Stamford Arts Centre - Roof 125 195 195 0  

Shop Front Scheme 181 56 56 0  

Tourism Signage 50 0 0 0  

Market Stall Covers 0 1 1 0  

Public Realm 0 15 15 0  

Meres LC - Boiler 0 29 0 (29) 
No plans for expenditure and no issues have arisen from 
the reopening of the centre.  This scheme can therefore 
be postponed and budget carried forward to 2021/22 

Invest & Regeneration 0 290 290 0  

Cycle Shelter & Changing 0 50 50 0  

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Regeneration 

0 100 100 0 
 

Total 3,410 3,522 3,016 (506)  

 

38



Appendix E 

2020/21 Reserves – General Fund 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance as 

at 31 
March 
2020 
£’000 

Forecast 
movement 

£’000 

Forecast 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

  Discretionary Reserves       

1 Climate Change 0 20 20 

2 Commercial 0 500 500 

3 Training and Development 15 0 15 

4 Street Scene 222 (24) 198 

5 ICT investment 177 35 212 

6 Economic Development & Growth 54 (54) 0 

7 Local Priorities Reserve 5,619 (228) 5,391 

8 Invest to Save 1,158 (196) 962 

9 Housing Delivery 1,107 0 1,107 

10 Property Maintenance 500 (130) 370 

11 Regeneration 1,847 (660) 1,187 

12 Food Waste 74 (74) 0 

13 Crowd Funding 64 (64) 0 

    10,837 (875) 9,962 

  Governance Reserves       

14 Insurance Reserve 309 0 309 

15 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 377 (41) 336 

16 Pensions Reserve - Current Employees 58 (58) 0 

17 Budget Stabilisation 2,843 0 2,843 

18 Building Control 33 (22) 11 

19 Football 3G Pitch 75 25 100 

20 Special Expense Area Reserve 211 17 228 

   3,906 (79) 3,827 

         

21 Total General Revenue Reserves 14,743 (954) 13,789 

         

22 Government Grants Received 870 (317) 553 

         

23  Working Balance 2,010 (253) 1,757 

        

24  Total Revenue Reserves 17,623 (1,524) 16,099 

         

 Capital Reserve       

25 LAMS Reserve 18  0 18 

27 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,054 (780) 274 

28 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 2,318 (351) 1,967 

         

29 Total Capital Reserves 3,390 (1,131) 2,259 

         

30 Total General Fund Reserves 21,013 (2,655) 18,358 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F 

 
Housing Revenue Account Summary 2020/21  

 

Description 
2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (24,557) (24,557) (24,194) 363 

Non-Dwelling Rents (331) (331) (310) 21 

Charges for Services and 
Facilities 

(677) (677) (611) 66 

Other Income (72) (72) (47) 25 

Total Income (25,637) (25,637) (25,162) 475 

          

Expenditure         

Repairs and Maintenance  7,433   7,537   7,116  (421) 

Supervision and 
Management - General 

 1,851   1,851   1,820  (31) 

Supervision and 
Management - Special 

 1,177   1,193   1,045  (148) 

Depreciation and 
Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

 3,609   3,609   3,609   0    

Debt Management 
Expenses 

 35   35   35   0   

Provision for bad debts  384   384   384   0    

Other Expenditure 
(Pension Deficit) 

 322   322   191  (131) 

Housing Development  250   250   172  (78) 

Support recharge from 
General Fund 

 2,558   2,558   2,558   0    

 Total Expenditure  17,619   17,739   16,930  (809) 
     

Net Cost of HRA 
Services 

(8,018) (7,898) (8,232) (334) 

Interest Payable and 
Similar Charges 

 2,778   2,778   2,718  (60) 

Interest and Investment 
Income 

(253) (253) (115)  138  

     

Surplus for the year (5,493) (5,373) (5,629) (256) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

 

 

 

Explanation of significant variances £’000 

Dwelling rents: 

Reduction in income of £120k as no new build properties are 
expected to be completed this year.  

Increase in write offs due to non-collection of rent of £100k.  The 
write off level is in line with the current bad debt provision level that 
is set in the HRA financial business plan. 

Void rates are higher than budgeted due to restrictions on moving 
residence during lockdown.  Currently at 2% (budgeted at 1.5%) 
resulting in an estimated £100k shortfall in rents. 

 

 

320 

 

Charges for Services and Facilities: 

Due to the closure of the communal rooms within the sheltered 
accommodation properties during lockdown, charges to residents 
have been reduced – it is expected that these will not re-open in 
this financial year therefore reducing income by £67k and a further 
£19k reduction from room hires. 

 

Creation of additional Homelessness units in order to comply with 
Covid-19 requirements has provided an increase of service 
charges of £23k.  (These are partially offset by the increased 
charges in managing these units) 

 

 

86 

 

 

 

 

 

(23) 

Repairs & Maintenance: 

Due to Covid-19, there has been a delay in repairs to council 
houses where access is necessary resulting in a forecast 
underspend of £430k 

 

Purchase of non-compliance software and annual subscription. 

 

 

(430) 

 

 

 

77 

Supervision & Management – Special: 

Planned refurbishments of communal rooms have been 
postponed, funds will be requested to carry forward to next year. 

 

 

(151) 

 

 

 

 
 

42



 

Appendix G 
 

HRA Capital Programme Summary 2020/21  

 

Capital Scheme 
2020/21 
Original 
Budget 

2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Variance Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  

Heating and Ventilation 2,300 1,900 1,500 (400) 
Works restarted in July. Communal scheme works on hold 

pending full review – likely carry forward to 21/22 

CCTV - HRA 30 30 20 (10)  

Housing System 

Enhancements 

400 0 0 0  

Repairs Vehicles 140 146 146 0  

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 125 125 0  

Communal Rooms 70 10 10 0  

Replacement Door 

Programme 

100 80 80 0  

Housing Growth 21,500 12,800 2,200 (10,600) 
Full scheme has been re-profiled. Detailed report going to 

Governance and Audit Committee on 19 November 2020 

Kitchens & Bathrooms 1,200 1,000 1,000 0  

Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,200 0  

Electrical Rewires 300 225 75 (150) Delays with contract decision, expected start date early 2021 

Sewage Maintenance 125 100 25 (75) Only 1 plant remaining, costs less than expected. 

Total 27,490 17,616 6,381 (11,235)  

 

 
 

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix H 

HRA Capital Scheme – New Build Programme 

At the beginning of the 19/20 financial year the spend for the following financial year of 20/21 

was anticipated to be £21.500m. This would finance the delivery of 125 new homes. Due to a 

number of factors below this has reduced drastically; 

The delivery of 5 bungalows in Stamford, 3 bungalows and 4 flats in Bourne, and 4 flats in 

Grantham have been delayed due to COVID-19.  

The progression towards planning of 2 further sites have also been delayed due to COVID-

19.  

A decision was made to not progress a scheme for 65 units which represented a large portion 

of the budget at £9.000m. 

The purchase of 25 units which had been budgeted for in this financial year failed to receive 

planning approval and accounted for a further £3.000m.  

A further purchase of a large commercial property to convert into temporary accommodation 

will also now not be pursued for ongoing legal reasons. 

We are forecasting to spend £2.200m this financial year (20/21) which will begin the delivery 

of 41 units as well as change the profile of a number of HRA stock properties to larger adapted 

homes. 

Of these 41 units, 6 will be funded by the Next Steps Accommodation Programme, the capital 

bid for £87k submitted at the end of August has been successful.  

The forecasted spend for 21/22 is £10.500m, this will enable the commencement of a further 

41 units as well as the completion of 23 units from 20/21. 

A more detailed report will be provided to Governance and Audit Committee in November.  

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix I 

2020/21 Reserves – Housing Revenue Account 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance    

as at          
31 March 

2020 
£’000 

Forecast 
movement 

£’000 

Forecast 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

  Revenue Reserves       

1 Service Specific (Pension) 261 (261) 0 

2 HRA Improvement 656 0 656 

3 Loan Repayment 1,350 0 1,350 

4 Property Development 14,722 0 14,722 

5 Residents Involvement 30 0 30 

6 Working Balance 1,560 (787) 773 

    18,579 (1,048) 17,531 

  Capital Reserves    

7 HRA Capital Receipts 7,260 (620) 6,640 

8 Major Repairs Reserve 14,293 2,642 16,935 

   21,553 2,022 23,575 

      

9 Total HRA Reserves 40,132 974 41,106 

 

47



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G

2020/21 Cashflow Statement (£)

Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

April April May May June June July July August August September September October November December January February March Total

Income

Council Tax 9,086,264 8,722,326 8,033,535 7,680,452 7,895,472 8,011,552 8,068,050 7,939,860 7,895,472 7,833,332 7,981,761 8,304,490 8,085,308 8,033,535 7,947,245 7,973,132 2,122,717 2,125,593 85,248,084

Business Rates 3,261,806 3,228,948 2,187,501 2,221,319 2,306,598 2,114,277 2,031,945 2,382,873 2,151,042 1,806,791 2,112,153 2,083,304 2,121,876 2,058,681 2,143,750 1,856,944 1,071,875 781,829 24,086,000

Rent 1,173,546 1,155,466 1,328,846 1,235,236 1,261,430 1,455,570 1,447,873 1,385,492 1,287,894 1,380,367 1,407,001 1,420,329 1,432,078 1,304,494 1,276,171 1,352,782 1,320,767 1,320,767 15,913,648

Invoices raised to customers 637,717 589,590 207,688 1,114,556 469,413 420,773 392,363 299,432 270,577 710,181 941,525 366,478 354,912 218,790 526,853 426,719 426,719 5,710,818

Housing Benefit Overpayments 30,082 24,988 28,820 18,778 22,176 22,906 18,097 18,758 18,384 15,275 23,823 16,708 24,813 18,369 12,644 22,756 27,762 27,762 275,488

Reimbursement of VAT 400,000 344,953 400,000 289,743 400,000 394,739 400,000 221,031 400,000 161,685 400,000 190,366 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 4,800,000

New Homes Bonus 453,000 0 453,442 0 453,000 453,443 0 0 453,000 453,000 1,812,000

Section 31 grant 200,000 2,232,587 1,545,455 1,714,975 1,545,455 857,488 1,545,455 1,714,977 1,545,455 1,714,975 1,545,455 1,714,975 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 17,200,000

Subsidy 1,386,000 1,386,421 1,386,000 3,107,249 1,386,000 1,481,920 1,386,000 1,628,440 1,386,000 1,418,254 1,386,000 1,418,254 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 16,632,000

COVID19 grant 1,416,290 194,639 117,868

Co-payment income scheme (Covid-19 Grant) 315,000 300,000 615,000

Cultural Recovery Grant (Covid-19 Grant) 207,000

Other Grants, for example, subsidy 1,734,689 443,102 227,583 281,563 5,250 1,734,689

16,628,415 17,685,279 16,852,533 18,580,585 15,931,687 15,035,448 15,771,192 16,418,800 14,983,678 14,801,145 15,566,374 16,089,951 16,337,007 15,219,314 14,930,054 15,816,921 8,301,295 8,014,125 174,027,727

Expenditure

LCC & PCC Precepts, Business Rates Pooling Payments 9,346,000 9,346,115 9,346,000 9,346,115 1,190,000 1,190,224 9,346,000 9,346,115 9,216,000 9,213,868 9,216,000 9,213,868 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 1,060,000 9,216,000 94,800,000

Government Bus. Rates Pooling Payments 1,800,000 58,740 58,738 58,738 58,740 58,740 200,150 200,150 1,721,160 1,721,160 1,721,162 1,721,162 2,659,943 2,659,943 2,659,945 2,659,944 2,659,944 2,659,943 21,519,612

Salaries 1,000,000 988,666 1,000,000 1,014,277 1,000,000 1,030,819 1,000,000 1,007,322 1,000,000 1,082,717 1,000,000 1,039,632 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 12,000,000

Benefit payments 885,000 852,154 850,000 844,820 1,650,000 1,607,238 840,000 804,931 840,000 748,175 840,000 793,674 810,000 890,000 860,000 800,000 790,000 790,000 10,845,000

Public Works Loan Board Loan Repayments 0 0 0 3,000,000 2,888,420 3,000,000 6,000,000

Rejected Direct Debits 50,000 206,092 50,000 58,806 50,000 59,564 50,000 56,160 50,000 77,381 50,000 60,224 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 600,000

Creditors 5,250,000 4,508,571 3,000,000 2,106,818 3,000,000 2,179,351 3,000,000 2,052,869 4,500,000 1,966,348 4,500,000 3,164,977 4,200,000 3,020,000 3,075,000 3,500,000 4,685,000 4,650,000 46,380,000

Business Rates/Council Tax refunds 180,000 917,131 135,000 404,517 115,000 229,312 200,000 483,506 115,000 314,304 180,000 245,689 175,000 100,000 317,000 171,000 175,000 175,000 2,038,000

18,511,000 16,877,469 14,439,738 13,834,091 7,063,740 6,355,249 14,636,150 13,951,052 17,442,160 15,123,953 20,507,162 19,127,646 18,110,943 16,935,943 17,177,945 17,396,944 10,419,944 21,540,943 194,182,612

Net Cashflow 1,882,585 -807,810 -2,412,795 -4,746,494 -8,867,947 -8,680,198 -1,135,042 -2,467,748 2,458,482 322,808 4,940,788 3,037,695 1,773,936 1,716,629 2,247,891 1,580,023 2,118,649 13,526,818 20,154,885

2,690,395 2,333,699 -187,748 1,332,706 2,135,673 1,903,093

49



NOTES

April

The Section 31 grant estimated on NNDR1 is normally paid in 12 instalments but Government paid the total amount in April to assist with cashflow which increased the income receipts

Government have rescheduled their share of the NNDR pooling payments to reduce the pressure on cashflow April - June

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £0.741m

There has been an increase in NNDR and Council Tax refund of £0.737m

There has been a reduction in council tax and NNDR income of £0.806m, this will partly be due to the rescheduling of payments and will be monitored on a daily basis

May

There was an increase in the subsidy grant expected to be received of £1.721m which relates to the balance of grant outstanding from 19/20

The New Homes Bonus Grant was received in May rather than April

There has been a reduction in Council tax and NNDR income of £0.593m, this will partly be due to the rescheduling of payments and will be monitored on a daily basis

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £0.893m

There has been an increase in NNDR and Council Tax refund of £0.270m

June

There has been a reduction in the invoices raised to customers of £645k which will be linked to the reduction in service provision due to COVID-19

There has been a reduction in the amount of NNDR collected of £481k which is linked to the additional relief provided by government

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £0.821m

July

There is an increase of £351k of NNDR income in July which is offset by a reduction of £344k of NNDR income in August

There is a reduction of £179k for the reimbursement of VAT which is expected as there is a reduction in payments to suppliers

Additional income of £230k has been received, £170k relates to the Discretionary Grant Fund

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £0.947m

August

There is a reduction of £239k for the reimbursement of VAT which is expected as there is a reduction in payments to suppliers

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £2.534m

September

There is an increase of £322k of Council Tax income which ffsets the reductions in previous months

There is a reduction of £231k for the reimbursement of VAT which is expected as there is a reduction in payments to suppliers

There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £1.335m

50



Appendix K 

Finance Risk Register 

 
 

     
 

 

Risk 
ref 

Risk description 
Existing 
controls/plans/mitigations 

Action to be taken to enhance or 
expand existing controls 

Likelihood Impact Rating 
Priority 

L/M/H/VH 
Risk 

category 

1 

Income 
recovery 
forecasting 
amounts differ 
from actuals   

Monthly modelling of actual 
income received compared 
with forecasts assumptions 

Existing controls are appropriate and 
will continue to be reviewed  

2 3 6 Medium Financial 

2 

Forecast 
expenditure 
reductions vary 
over the coming 
months   

Monthly budget monitoring 
is in place across all service 
areas to review expenditure 
forecasts and to identify 
expenditure savings  

Monthly monitoring is in place, so no 
further controls are required at this 
time  2 4 8 Medium Financial 

3 

No further 
tranches of 
Government 
funding is 
received   

There are no existing 
controls in place as this risk 
is external to the 
organisation  

The Government has now allocated 
4 tranches of funding and a further 
support package in respect of leisure 
costs is expected.  

3 4 12 High Financial 

4 

Ongoing 
reduction of 
collection rates 
for Council tax 
and Business 
Rates 

Collection rates are 
monitored on a monthly 
basis 

Collection rates are monitored on a 
monthly basis and benchmarked 
against neighbouring authorities to 
share best practice  
 
Reinstatement of Recovery policy 
now in place  

3 3 9 Medium Financial 

51



5 

Reinstatement 
of lockdown 
restrictions that 
have a negative 
impact on 
economic 
recovery  

There is an ongoing risk 
that the easing of 
restrictions either from a 
national or local perspective 
has a detrimental impact on 
the economic recovery of 
the District. 
This is an external risk and 
therefore no internal 
controls exist  

Ongoing monitoring is in place to 
review the situation as it evolves 

2 4 8 Medium  Financial 

 

 

52



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 November 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 
The Leader of the Council 

   

         
  

 

Covid-19 Recovery and Quarter Two 2020/21 
Performance  

This paper details South Kesteven District Council’s performance in key service areas as the 
pandemic continues. 
 
It also sets out performance reporting for quarter two of 2020/21. It shows the Council’s 
performance data in dashboard format for the service areas agreed by committee members.  
 

 

Report Author 

Clare Milner, Performance Lead 

Tel:  01476 406482 

Email:  c.milner@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Competitiveness Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 23 October 2020 

Approved by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal and Monitoring 
Officer  

26 October 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 30 October 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Note the content of the report outlining the progress of the Council’s activities in 
line with Covid-19 recovery. 

53

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

2. Note quarter two performance results shown in dashboard format for the key 
services. 

54



 

 
 

1 South Kesteven Recovery to Covid-19 

1.1 On June 16, Cabinet agreed a framework for setting out a recovery plan from the effects 

of Covid-19 that mirror that of the new corporate plan. The previous report taken to the 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee included how the Council performed in relation to activities set out in the 

recovery plan during quarter one. This report will provide an updated position on actions 

progressed during quarter two.  

1.2 To deliver growth of our economy the Council have committed to support businesses in 

our district during recovery of Covid-19.  

• The re-opening of our high streets has been a success. Businesses have been 
supported by the various signage and advice to the public displayed in our town 
centres. InvestSK has continued to maintain a detailed dialogue with businesses, on 
safe re-opening, being Covid-19 compliant and future plans. There are excellent 
examples of businesses diversifying their offer and developing new lines as a result of 
the changing needs of the customer base. This has ranged from taking high street 
retailing on-line to using engineering and manufacturing equipment to produce PPE for 
supply direct to the NHS. 

• InvestSK has a virtual business briefing planned in early November 2020 following the 
success of the meetings held in June and September. This will continue the theme of 
skills for the workforce focusing on further education, bridging the gap between school 
and the workplace.  

• The government grant schemes have now closed (as of 30th September 2020). The 
Small Business and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure grants successfully supported 2,315 
businesses in the district with a total of £28.16 million awarded. The Local Authority 
Discretionary Grant fund supported a further 251 businesses allocating £1.54m to local 
businesses in meeting the criteria. 

1.3 Recommencement of housing management services continues, addressing the backlog of 

routine repairs so South Kesteven District Council are providing housing that meets the 

needs of our residents. 

• Housing officers are now dealing with anti-social behaviour cases urgent and non-
urgent. Allocations from the register and the tenancy support service for housing has 
been successfully implemented with follow up visits commenced. Sheltered housing is 
continuing to be monitored with the communal areas not operational due to Covid-19.  

• The housing repairs service continues to face challenges from the impact of Covid-19. 
There is still some supply chain disruption for core materials. 

• There has been a phased response approach to the housing repairs, this response is 
being monitored and will remain at the current service level due to the high risk based 
on government guidance and local health intelligence. The Covid-19 risk assessment 
has been adjusted to allow work to be undertaken, addresses the backlog of routine 
repairs.  

• During quarter two 3,206 repair jobs were raised, including 122 emergency repairs. A 
total of 3,042 repair jobs were completed (95% completion rate). The remaining 164 
jobs fall into other completion criteria, planned to be completed in October 2020 
or identified as exceeding four hours which require further planning via split attendance 
and or external intervention. 

 

55



 

 
 

 

1.4 Maintaining and building on strong relations with the voluntary sector and other 

partnership agencies is an objective of the Covid-19 recovery plan.  

• Connection between the Council and the voluntary and community sector remain 
strong through the SK Community Hub and pre-existing networks. Officers remain in 
close contact with groups supporting communities on the ground e.g. Foodbanks, 
befrienders, Good Neighbour schemes etc.  

• A review of the Council’s community funding opportunities has been undertaken.  A 
workshop was held with members of the Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 27 July 2020 which was followed up with a report presented at 
the Committee’s meeting on 10 September 2020.  The recommendations from the 
workshop and meeting have been incorporated into a subsequent report to Cabinet 
which asks that Members agree to changes to eligibility, a reduction in maximum grant 
allowance and draw-down time and the introduction of a new category to support the 
priorities of mental health, social/rural isolation and loneliness.  This report went to 
Cabinet on 13 October 2020. 

1.5 The recovery plan seeks to maintain a clean and sustainable environment with the gradual 

resumption of Environmental Health ‘normal’ services. 

• Businesses can download posters and materials on the Council’s dedicated Covid-19 
business support page on the SKDC website. 

• Additional staffing capacity has been bought in to utilise the government test and trace 
support grant. There have been 555 Covid-19 related complaints and requests for 
advice from businesses, employees and the public. 70 visits to premises to assess 
“Covid-19 secure” compliance and eight enforcement notices served for Covid-19 
related issues. 

• Environmental services continue to work with Public Health England on workplace 
related outbreaks.  

• Renewals for all licence types continue to be processed to ensure businesses can 
continue to operate.  

1.6 Following the national steep rise in Covid-19 cases the Council took the decision to move 

from the ‘recovery’ phase back into the ‘response’ phase on the 28 September 2020. 

Areas of work continuing to support this include:  

• Development of the Local Outbreak Management Plan which was approved by the 
Lincolnshire Outbreak Management Board. Early outbreak management information 
has been created for a range of specific situations where outbreaks could occur to 
support businesses or organisations to deal with an outbreak.  

• Work has taken place across a range of health and social care organisations, in order 
to ensure that, the national Test and Trace programme meets the needs of the local 
population and support any local response. 

• District Councils, Trading Standards, Lincolnshire County Council, Police and other 
agencies are working together to ensure consistent enforcement practices across the 
county.  

2 Performance Reporting to Committee 

2.1 An overview of performance against agreed indicators is set out below for quarter two. 

The performance dashboards are included in appendices 1-6. The dashboards show 

56



 

 
 

performance against targets, as well as benchmarking information where available. An 

updated commentary also explains the performance and any associated implications.  

Members should note that the data being reported on is subject to review at CMT level, as 

it is felt that the reporting needs to be more detailed, accurate, and should report on trends 

and against targets with focus then on service improvement. This is a work in progress. 

The complaints monitoring process is under review with the aim to provide more 

comprehensive feedback data on themes to highlight areas for improvements. In particular 

members are asked to note that the data concerning complaints (Appendix 6) currently 

includes figures for simple calls for service, and omits data relating to stages 2 and 3 of 

the complaints process. This is being looked at for future performance reports. 

• Appendix 1-3 shows performance data for Revenues. Non-domestic rates, council tax 
and rents end of quarter two performance position is included in Section 3 of this 
report. 

• Appendix 4 shows that planning applications processing times for ‘major’, ‘minor’ and 
‘other’ applications were all above the national target. The above figures have been 
achieved largely using extensions of time utilised to manage increased workload and 
reduced capacity. Average days of determination remains high due to the following 
factors including: Reduced capacity, changes to the constitution meaning all majors 
must be determined by Planning Committee and complexities of some major 
applications. 

• Appendix 5 shows 266 dwellings have been completed by quarter two which is below 
what the Council would usually expect. The lower delivery rate is due to the impact of 
Covid-19 on the housing market. The Local Plan identifies land to provide 53% of 
housing in Grantham, 18% in Stamford, 7% in Bourne, 8% in The Deepings and 14% 
in the villages. Total completions in the 4 main towns account for 92% of completions 
and 4% in the larger villages. Of the 266 dwellings completed by quarter two 2020, 20 
dwellings are affordable housing, completed in Grantham, Stamford and Market 
Deeping. 55% of the total completions for the year so far have been in Grantham. 
There have been no council homes completed in April-September 2020.  

• A follow up action following quarter one reporting in relation to number of council 
houses built confirmed: 

− 14 council houses were built between 1 April 2019-31 March 2020 

o Kinoulton Court (10) 

o Earlesfield Lane (4) 

• Appendix 6 shows stage one complaints received. Quarter two has seen an increase 
of 7% from 256 in 19/20 to 275 in 20/21. Of the 275 complaints received the highest 
volume is from Street Care service at 72% of the total complaints (197 complaints). It is 
important to remember this service has the highest volume of resident interactions.  

 

2.2 Previous presentations of this report have included a waste performance dashboard. 

Following a workshop held 15 September 2020 the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee have requested alterations to the format of that dashboard. These include: 

• Additional historic data  

• Improved Benchmarking  

• Additional waste composition data  

57



 

 
 

As this area falls under the remit of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

with agreement of Chairman Cllr Jeal, this dashboard will be reported in future directly to 

the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Online presentation of the dashboard 

will continue in line with that committees reporting cycle. 

3 Covid-19 Impact on Revenues Performance 

3.1 Since the start of Covid-19 and the impact of the lockdown from 23 March 2020, there has 

been significant changes to the collection profile primarily as a result of the temporary 

suspension of recovery action. During this suspension period the Council teams have 

focused more specifically on providing support and advice to residents and businesses in 

a targeted way.    

3.2 All recovery action that the Council would normally act upon, had been suspended since 

March 2020, so during the period April – June 2020 the Council would usually have sent 

1,117 council tax reminders and 1,308 business rates reminders. Formal recovery has 

now been reinstated with reminders being issued from 7 September 2020 onwards. 

3.3 Collection performance to end of September 2020 and shows an overall positive collection 

position and is very much in line with neighbouring authorities:  

 

20/21 Council Tax Business Rates Rents 

Annual collection 

rate 

Target is 19/20 

actual which is 

98.68% 

Target is 19/20 actual 

which is 99.16% 

98.50% 

Target Collection rate 

to end of September 

2020 

56.74% 57.81% 48.45% 

Actual collection rate 

to end of September 

2020 

55.86% 54.97% 48.29% 

 

Council Tax collection  

3.4 Collection is only below profiled target by 0.88% which equates to £752,459 whilst the net 

liability has increased by £2,847,724. During the lockdown for Covid-19 the deferral 

requests for council tax collection from April and May to later in the year, totalled £242,000 

during quarter one.  There have been minimal further requests for deferrals. 

3.5 There has also been an increase in direct debit cancellations of £254,000. There is a 

remaining amount of £422,296 from additional CTS hardship – which will help with 

collection (0.49% of net collectable).  

3.6 The recommencement of recovery actions will now allow the team to continue to support 

residents and attempt to achieve the collection volumes to March 2021.  

 

 

58



 

 
 

 Collection % Net liability (£) Total net receipt (£) 

September 2020 55.86 85,506,708 47,760,261 

September 2019 56.74 82,658,984 46,900,656 

Difference -0.88 +2,847,724 +859,605 

 

Council Tax Support 

3.7 As a result of Covid-19, South Kesteven have seen an increase in the number of residents 

in receipt of Council Tax Support (CTS).  The number of those in receipt has increased by 

540 since 1 April 2020, resulting in an increase cost to the scheme of £388,939. The cost 

of the scheme is shared between South Kesteven District Council and the precepting 

authorities – Lincolnshire County Council and Peterborough City Council. 

3.8 The Council Tax Support Scheme is currently being reviewed for 2021/22 with financial 

modelling being undertaken for proposed changes to the maximum entitlement.  Currently, 

the entitlement is capped at 80% of the Council Tax liability. 

Business Rates (NNDR) 

3.9 Although it is extremely difficult to compare NDR performance this year with no formal 

recovery actions since April 2020 compared to the Council’s usual activity last year, as at 

30 September 2020, our collection rate was 54.97% which is £13,070,962 of the £24 

million (roughly £2.18 million for each of the 6 months) – which leaves £10,707,393 to 

collect between now and 31 March 2021– which is £1.78 million per month. 

 

 Collection % Total net liability (£) Total net receipt (£) 

September 

2020 

54.97 23,778,355 13,071,554 

September 

2019 

57.81 43,180,023 24,962,102 

Difference -2.84 -19,401,668 -11,890,548 

 

3.10 For business rates, a total £20.7 million has been awarded in Expanded Retail Discount to 

978 businesses and nursery relief (for registered childcare providers to 30 nurseries 

totalling £305,000). 

Rents 

3.11 Rents also had no formal recovery since March with all court action suspended.  However 

proactive contact has been provided to tenants by the Council to provide support, 

assistance, signposting, DHP allocation of £83,461 for 20/21 and the awards to date 

provided (£69,219 already paid and £14,242 committed to 31 March 2021).   

3.12 There will be ongoing challenges for recovery of rents for the rest of 20/21. This includes 

an increase in former tenant arrears of £30,814 (currently £897,304). 

59



 

 
 

3.13 Rent collection for quarter two was only below 2019/20 target by 0.16% (an increase from 

quarter one of just 0.01%). The actual rent collected was £12,378,850 against a target of 

£12,420,704. Officers are continuing to undertake detailed analysis of the rent income 

streams – which includes direct debits, DWP payments, Allpay, Housing Benefit and many 

more to understand fluctuations within each income stream. 

Test and Trace self-isolation payment scheme 

3.14 The Government has set up a new Test and Trace Support Payment scheme of a £500 

lump sum payment to support those that cannot work during their self-isolation period.   

3.15 To be eligible for the Test and Trace Support Payment, you must have been asked to self-

isolate by NHS Test and Trace either because you have tested positive for Coronavirus or 

have recently been in close contact with someone who has tested positive;  be employed 

or self-employed; be unable to work from home and will lose income as a result; and be 

currently receiving Universal Credit, Working Tax Credit, income-based Employment and 

Support Allowance, income-based Jobseeker's Allowance, Income Support, Housing 

Benefit and/or Pension Credit. 

3.16 The scheme has so far had 73 applications (12 October to 20 October 2020) in SKDC with 

8 successfully validated and paid as part of the mandatory scheme within the 3 day turn 

around.  Those that are not eligible for the mandatory scheme will be considered for a 

discretionary scheme. SKDC have funding for £46,000 (92 payments) for the mandatory 

scheme and £27,700 (55 payment) in the discretionary scheme. 

4 Key Terms and Definitions 

4.1 Benchmarking groups 

Where possible benchmarking groups have been selected to provide context to South 

Kesteven’s performance figures. The benchmarking datasets are explained below: 

• Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates: The benchmarking groups for these measures 
are provided by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
Authorities are matched against a range of different measure to ensure near statistical 
neighbour comparisons are possible. 

• Waste: This group compares performance against the members of the Lincolnshire 
Waste Partnership who operate under the same contractual obligations.  

• Rents: Benchmarking for this area is currently under review to ensure that the authority 
is compared with similar organisations and that a meaningful comparison can be 
undertaken. This will be included in future reports once the review has been 
completed. 

4.2 Definitions 

The dashboards seek to present information in plain English. However, a small number of 

technical terms are still used. These are explained below. 

• Major applications are those for more than 10 dwellings or over 1,000 sqm non-
residential floorspace. 

• Non-major applications are those which include householder, minor and other types of 
applications.  

• Minor applications are those for less than 10 dwellings or below a floorspace of 1,000 
sqm for non-residential development. It includes applications for change of use. 

60



 

 
 

• Other applications include householders, listed building consent and advertisement 
consent applications. 

• Non-Recyclables includes crisp packets, contaminated paper/card and wood, 
alongside hazardous materials such as batteries, liquids and nappies. 

  

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Regular reporting on agreed performance dashboards is to be welcomed from a governance 

point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from this 

report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as required. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 The contents of this report do not expose the authority to any additional risks. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None 

10 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

10.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions or 

the carbon emissions of the wider district. 

11 Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Rents Performance Dashboard 

Appendix 2 – Council Tax Performance Dashboard 

Appendix 3 – Non-Domestic Rates Performance Dashboard 

Appendix 4 – Planning Process Performance Dashboard 

Appendix 5 – House Builds Performance Dashboard 

Appendix 6 – Complaints Performance Dashboard 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not Applicable 

Previously Considered by: Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

22 September 2020 

Final Decision date   Not Applicable 

61



 

 
 

 

62



10/22/2020 Page 2

1/1

Cumulative Payments Received Against Target

£0M

£5M

£10M

Apr 2020 May 2020 Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Aug 2020 Sep 2020

£12.81M£7.76M£5.96M £10.32M£3.33M
£1.42M

£12.65M

£7.81M

£5.95M

£11.56M

£3.88M

Collected Expected Collection

Percentage of Rent Collected Against Target

0%

20%

40%

01 July
2018

01 August
2018

01
September

2018

01 July
2019

01 August
2019

01
September

2019

01 July
2020

01 August
2020

01
September

2020

32
.8

2%

40
.6

2%

47
.9

1%

32
.8

5%

40
.3

8%

49
.9

8%

31
.1

0%

40
.2

3%

48
.2

9%

30
.4

5%

41
.0

5%

49
.3

5%

30
.4

5%

41
.0

5%

49
.3

5%

30
.4

5%

45
.0

5%

49
.3

5%

% Collected Target Collection %

Arrears (By Type)

£0.0M

£0.5M

£1.0M

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
rr

ea
rs

 (£
)

01 Octo
ber 2…

01 November 2018

01 December 2018

01 January 2
019

01 Fe
bruary 2

019

01 March
 2019

01 April 2
019

01 May 2
019

01 June 2019

01 July 2
019

01 August 2
019

01 September 2019

01 Octo
ber 2019

01 November 2019

01 December 2019

01 January 2
020

01 Fe
bruary 2

020

01 March
 2020

01 April 2
020

01 May 2
020

01 June 2020

01 July 2
020

01 August 2
020

01 September 2020

Former Tenant Arrears Current Tenant Other Arrears Current Tenant Dwelling Arrears
Rents Performance Quarter 2 2020/2021

Commentary/Implications  

There will be ongoing challenges for recovery of rents for the rest of 20/21. This includes an 
increase in former tenant arrears of £30,814 (currently £897,304).           

Rent collection for quarter two was only below 2019/20 target by 0.16% (an increase 
from quarter one of just 0.01%). The actual rent collected was £12,378,850 against a 
target of £12,420,704. Officers are continuing to undertake detailed analysis of the 
rent income streams – which includes direct debits, DWP payments, Allpay, Housing 
Benefit and many more to understand fluctuations within each income stream.
 

£12,651,747
End of Quarter Target

£12,805,496
End of Quarter Collected

101.22%
EOQ Position

63



10/22/2020 Page 1

1/1

Build visuals with your data
Select or drag fields from the Fields pane onto the report canvas.

64



10/16/2020 Page 1

1/1

Current Year Collection Vs. Target

0%

20%

40%

60%

May 2020 Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Aug 2020 Sep 2020

% Paid To Date Target

Historic Collection Performance

0%

20%

40%

60%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

20
.3

0% 29
.4

9% 38
.8

7% 48
.2

6% 57
.6

9%

20
.2

2% 29
.4

3% 38
.7

9% 48
.1

6% 57
.5

8%

20
.0

9% 29
.3

3% 38
.6

6% 48
.0

5% 57
.1

8%

19
.8

9% 28
.9

7% 38
.3

1% 47
.4

7% 56
.7

0%
Financial Year 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

57.17%
Collection Rate Target

Commentary/Implications
Collection is below by 0.88% which is £752,459 and the net liability has 
increased by £2,847,724. During the lockdown for Covid-19 the deferral 
requests for council tax collection from April and May to later in the year, 
totalled £242,000 during quarter one. 

There has also been an increase in direct debit cancellations of £254,000. 
There is a remaining amount of £422,296 from additional CTS hardship – 
which will help with collection (0.49% of net collectable). 

The recommencement of recovery actions will now allow the team to focus 
making up for the lost time and work towards the target, recovering the 
collection volumes to March 2021. 

Council Tax Performance Quarter 2 2020/21

55.86%
% Collected (End of Reporting Quarter)

£47.76M
Value Collected (End of Reporting Quarter)

Council Tax Collected Compared to Peer Group
2019-20

97.4%

97.6%

97.8%

98.0%

98.2%

98.4%

South Kesteven CIPFA Nearest
Neighbours

Lincolnshire
Councils

East Midlands
Councils

98.45%

98.06%

97.47%
97.38%

Commentary/Implications

At 30/09/2020 the collection rate was under target by 
-1.31% (Representing collection of -£1,122,208.64 less than 

what was expected). £37,743,446.72 remains left to be 
collected from the financial year.

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



10/16/2020 Page 1

1/1

Commentary/Implications

It is extremely difficult to compare NNDR performance this year 
with no formal recovery actions since April 2020 compared to 
the council’s usual activity last year. 

As at 30th September, our collection rate was 54.97% which is 
£13,070,962 of the £24 million (roughly £2.18 million for each of 
the 6 months) which leaves £10,707,393 to collect between now 
and 31st March – which is £1.78 million per month.

Current Year Collection Vs. Target

0%

20%

40%

60%

Apr 2020 May 2020 Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Aug 2020 Sep 2020

% Paid To Date Sum of Target

Historic Collection Performance

0%

20%

40%

60%

Month
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

24
.3

3%

33
.0

0%

41
.7

0%

50
.1

7%

59
.1

7%

24
.2

4%

33
.0

4%

41
.5

0%

50
.1

3%

59
.1

6%

23
.6

8%

33
.1

8%

41
.7

9%

50
.2

0%

58
.8

6%

23
.3

7%

31
.9

1%

40
.2

6%

49
.1

2%

57
.8

1%
Financial Year 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020

58.42%
Collection Rate Target (End of Reporting Quarter)

Non-Domestic Rates Performance Quarter 2 2020/21  

54.97%
% Collected (End of Reporting Quarter)

£13.07M
Value Collected (End of Reporting Quarter)

NNDR Collected Compared to Peer Group
2019-20

98.4%

98.6%

98.8%

99.0%

South Kesteven CIPFA Nearest
Neighbours

East Midlands
Councils

Lincolnshire
Councils

99.16%

98.57%

98.36% 98.33%

At 30/09/2020 the collection rate was under target by -3.45% 
(Representing collection of -£819,760.74 less than what was 

expected). £10,706,800.91 remains left to be collected from the 
financial year.

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



10/14/2020 OSC

1/1

Planning Process Performance Q1&Q2

Multiple selections 

Total Planning Applications

506

Planning Applications Decisions

D
ec

is
io

n Approved conditionally

Refused

94%

6%

Average Days of Determination

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Reporting Period
2017/2018 Q1

2017/2018 Q2

2017/2018 Q3

2017/2018 Q4

2018/2019 Q1

2018/2019 Q2

2018/2019 Q3

2018/2019 Q4

2019/2020 Q1

2019/2020 Q2

2019/2020 Q3

2019/2020 Q4

2020/2021 Q1

2020/2021 Q2

138
158

222

119
132

339

274

170

302

348

175

420
401

325

75 82 82 84 81 83 81 88 89 84 93 86 76 86

Major Non-Major

Processing of Planning Applications
Within Time/Agreed Time

Ty
pe Major 3 11

Within Time N Y

Ty
pe Minor 36 97

Within Time N Y

Ty
pe Other 43 317

Within Time N Y

Commentary/Implications
Processing of Planning Applications:
78.5% of major applications were determined in time. The
national target is 60%.
72.9% of minor applications were determined in time which is
above the national target of 65%.
88% of other applications were determined in time which is
well above the national target of 80%.

The above figures have been achieved largely through the use
of extensions of time, utilised to manage increased workload and 
reduced capacity.

Average Days of Determination:
Remains high due to following factors:
1. Reduced capacity  
2. Changes to the constitution meaning all majors have to be 
determined by Committee
3. Complexities of some major applications
4. Awaiting further information from applicant

The recent recruitment of a new Senior Planning Officer is
predicted to improve the turnaround of determination and the 
refusal, without delay, of sub-standard applications where paid 
pre-app advice has not been sought.

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



10/14/2020 House Builds Dash

1/1

New Homes Built in South Kesteven 2020/21

Grantham : 146

Stamford : 35

The Deepings : 34

Bourne : 29

Smaller Village : 11

Larger Village : 10

Countryside : 1

© 2020 TomTom © 2020 HERE, © 2020 Microsoft Corporation© 2020 TomTom © 2020 HERE, © 2020 Microsoft Corporation

Number of Houses Built by Year

400

500

600

700

N
o.

 o
f h

ou
se

s 
bu

ilt

2014-15 2015-16 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-20

652
729

448

478

676

495

Total House Builds
April-September 2020

266
Total House Builds This Year

Commentary/Implications
The Local Plan was adopted on 30th January 2020. The Plan’s annual target for housing completions is 650 dwellings. 
266 dwellings have been completed by Q2 2020 which is below what the Council would usually expect. The lower delivery 
rate is due to the impact of Covid-19 on the housing market.

The Local Plan identifies land to provide 53% of housing in Grantham, 18% in Stamford, 7% in Bourne, 8% in The Deepings 
and 14% in the villages. Total completions in the 4 main towns account for 92% of completions
and 4% in the larger villages. Of the 266 dwellings completed by Q2 2020, 20 dwellings are affordable housing, completed 
in Grantham, Stamford and Market Deeping. 
 It is also worth highlighting that 55% of total completions for the year so far have been located in Grantham. 

*Please note that housing figures, including completions are indicative and will be finalised through publication of an 
Annual Position Statement or 5 Year Supply Statement at year end.

House Build Performance Quarter 2

Total Affordable
Homes

20
Total Affordable Built

Affordable Homes Built By Location
April-September 2020

Sta
mford

Marke
t D

eeping

Grantham
Bourne

Larger V
illa

ges

Smaller V
illa

ges

11

6

3

0 0 0

71

ms-pbi://www.bing.com/maps?cp=25~-20.000000000000007&lvl=1&style=r&FORM=BMLOGO


T
his page is intentionally left blank



10/30/2020 Page 1

1/1

Complaints & Compliments Performance Quarter 2 2020/21

Complaints By Service April-September 20/21
Service Area
 

Value

Benefits
Chief Executive
Corporate Operations
Council Tax, Recovery & Enforcement, Rents
Development Management & Implementation
Environmental Health, Licensing & Neighbourhoods
Facilities & Estates
Finance, Accountancy & Risk
Housing
HR
Legal, Democratic & Elections
Repairs & Improvements
Spatial & Economic Growth
Street Care Services

2
1
2
5

13
6
1
1

30
1
3

12
1

197
Total 275

Complaints By Month 2020/21

0

20

40

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

September
April June July May

August

88%
96%98%

91%
96% 94%

Total Complaints received % of Complaints Closed within Due Date

Compliments By Service April-September 2020/21

0 50

Street Care S…

Customer Se…

Repairs & Im…

Benefits

Corporate O…

Council Tax, …

Developmen…

Environment…

Facilities & E…

Housing

60

15

6

4

3

2

2

1

1

1

Complaints By Service April-September 19/20
Service
 

Complaints

Benefits
Building Control
Council Tax, Recovery & Enforcement, Rents
Customer Services
Development Management & Implementation
Environmental Health, Licensing & Neighbourhoods
Housing
ICT
Legal, Democratic & Elections
Repairs & Improvements
Reputation & Comms
Street Care Services
Venues & Facilities

2
1
2
1

26
1

21
1
2

21
2

166
10

Total 256

Commentary & Implications
Total complaints for Q2 increased 7% from 256 in 19/20 to 275 in 20/21.
Of the 275 complaints received the highest volume is from Street Care service at 72% of the total complaints (197 complaints). This 
service has the highest frequency of transactions through customer service. This volume seems high at first, until you consider the 
amount of interactions customers have with SKDC for this service.
Complaints for Street Care services have increased by 6% compared to Q2 last year. 

Street Care services also continues to receive the highest level of compliments with 63% of the compliments for Q2. 
60 out of 95. 

The complaints monitoring process is under review with the aim to provide more comprehensive feedback data on themes to highlight areas 
for improvements. The complaints data shown here includes figures for simple calls for service, and omits data relating to stages 2 and 3 of 
the complaints process. This is being reviewed for future performance reporting.

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 November 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 

         
  

 

Invest to Save Reserve 

This report sets out the use of the Invest to Save reserve and makes recommendations ahead of 
the budget framework proposals for 2021/22. 

 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

Tel: 01476 406210 

Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 28 October 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 2 November 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

2 November 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked 

• To note the use of the Invest to Save Reserve and to agree the guiding principles 
that are used. 

• To recommend that the Invest to Save Reserve continues for 2021/22 at a level of 
£500k. 

75

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Invest to Save Reserve is a revenue discretionary reserve that was established by 

Council with the stated intention of ‘pump priming’ revenue initiatives that have a stated 

aim of achieving a ‘cashable’ saving in the medium term. As at the 31 March 2020 the 

reserve balance is £1.158m having been increased in previous years from a balance of 

£358k as at 31 March 2017. 

1.2 There is no prescribed financial level for the reserve which has increased in recent years 

from a previous upper limit of £500k.   

1.3 The reserve is authorised for use in accordance with the approval process approved by 

Council on 31 January 2019 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22128/CFM484%20Council%20Fina

ncial%20Management%20amendments%20201819v3.pdf 

1.4 As stated, the primary purpose of the reserve is to ‘pump prime’ initiatives for projects that 
clearly demonstrate within a business case that cashable savings could be realised 
following a one-off injection of investment. Examples of these initiatives include investment 
in modern equipment which then releases ongoing sustainable savings through cashable 
efficiencies. However, in some scenario’s the investment can be relatively speculative as 
the cost incurred may be to investigate a potential cost saving opportunity. Initiatives of 
this kind should also be encouraged where supported by a business proposal. 
 
In order to accelerate these proposals, it is important there is a mechanism in place that 
allows the resource to be released in order to achieve the savings as early as possible. 
Therefore, it was agreed by Council that a delegation is given to the Cabinet Member for 
Finance in consultation with the Council’s s151 Officer to consider and approve proposals 
for its use.   
 

1.5 Over the recent period, the Invest to Save Reserve has been used to fund a number of 

initiatives including: 

Theme Approved 
£’000 

Spend to 
2021/22 
£’000 

Savings 
achieved 
to date 
£’000 

Narrative 

Process 
Automation 

450 225 81 Currently halfway through 
project 

Transformation  453 193 This was 
a resource 

support 
initiative 

Project officers funding ceases 
January 2021.  Savings are 
unable to be quantified as the 
use was for resource support for 
corporate projects 

Lightbox 182 159 This was 
a resource 

support 
initiative 

Project officers funding ceased 
March 2020.  Savings are 
unable to be quantified as the 
use was for resource support for 
corporate projects 

76

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22128/CFM484%20Council%20Financial%20Management%20amendments%20201819v3.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22128/CFM484%20Council%20Financial%20Management%20amendments%20201819v3.pdf


 

 
 

Procurement 86 71 241 Following the corporate 
restructure, this resource is now 
a permanent post 

Street Lighting* 100 9  Tender documentation being 
prepared.  Contract 
commencement date yet to be 
confirmed 

Financial 
Services 
Review 

12 12 50 Restructure completed as part of 
corporate restructure- annual 
savings of £50k achieved 

Internet of 
Things 

10 10  Project complete for street 
lighting - data and knowledge 
gathered during the project has 
been used within the full 
procurement project to replace  
our street lighting. Further 
projects are in development 

Advertising and 
sponsorship 

40 20  Currently halfway through 
project – working towards 
procurement specification and 
contract documents 

Online forms 
library 

11 11 6 Project complete - annual 
licence fee savings 

*street lighting update will be provided to Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8 December 

2020 

1.6 For each of these proposals, a supporting business case is required which sets out the 

investment requirements, the objectives of the proposal and the anticipated payback 

period.  The supporting documentation is shown at Appendix 1.  It is the responsibility of 

the sponsor of the proposal to ensure that the project outlined in the supporting business 

case is implemented in accordance with the proposal.  In the event that there is some 

variation or previously unidentified risks come to light, then the possibility exists that an 

initial financial outlay will not be recouped.  This risk is heightened where the initiative is 

closely aligned with innovation or transformational projects. 

1.7 Clearly there are some instances where the intended financial benefit has not been 

achieved as intended.  Therefore it is suggested that the business case approval process 

is strengthened where possible to reduce the risk of modest or minimal financial return. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  None. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The Invest to Save Reserve is a discretionary reserve that the Council has chosen to 

include in its budget framework.  Therefore the Council could decide not to retain the 

reserve or alternatively retain the reserve but set a different financial limit. 

77



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 It is recommended that the reserve is retained but the level is set at a reduced level of 

£500k rather than the current level of £1.1m.   

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The Council needs to carefully manage it’s reserve levels against a backdrop of competing 

financial pressures.  Whilst it is preferential to retain the reserve it is recommended that 

the reserve level is reduced. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If the recommendations are supported, then these will feed into the budget preparations 

for 2021/22. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The financial considerations are referenced throughout the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 For good governance, Invest to Save business cases should be reviewed and reported 

against at this Committee, so that Members can see whether the business case has been 

successful. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The associated risks for each proposal are identified in the respective business case in 

advance of any invest to save monies being allocated. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None.   

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None. 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Invest to Save business case template 

 

 

78



 

 
 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   28 January 2021 

 

79



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Case Application for Invest to Save Funding 

Title  Saving or 
Income (“x”) 

Saving Income 

  

Total amount required from the 
Invest to Save fund 

  Investment 
Required 

Net Saving/ 
Income 

Is the investment required 
capital or revenue? 

 Year 1   

Year 2   

Will the resultant savings/ 
income be capital or revenue? 

 Year 3   

Total   

Payback period (years)  Recurring saving/income post 
payback? 

 

The Proposal 

 

 

 

 

Alignment with the Council’s Corporate Strategy 

 

 
 

Potential Barriers to be Overcome 

 

 

 

Risks and how they will be managed (Financial and Other) 

 

 

 

 

Key Milestones and Target Timescales (from approval)  

Milestone Target Period from Approval Date (months) 

1.   

2.   

3.   

4.   

Proposal submitted 
by 
 

 Directorate  

 

81



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 November 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

This report reviews the Council’s Local Council Tax Support scheme in advance of the 2021/22 
financial year. 

 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

Tel: 01476 406210 

Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 28 October 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 2 November 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

2 November 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the Local Council Tax Support Scheme and 
recommend the current scheme of 80% to the Council for the financial year 
2021/22. 

2. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to recommend that a fundamental review of the 
scheme is commenced in the Summer 2021 period in order to assess the impact of 
the pandemic on the scheme. 

83

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Council Tax Benefit system was abolished on 31 March 2013 and replaced by the 

Council Tax Support Scheme.  This scheme can be determined locally by the Billing 

Authority having had due consultation with precepting authorities, key stakeholders and 

residents.  There are currently 8,270 residents claiming Council Tax Support in the South 

Kesteven District. 3,320 are pensioners who are protected under the legislation and 

receive Council Tax Support as prescribed by the Government (broadly similar to the level 

of Council Tax Benefit).  It is the 4,950 working age claimants where a local scheme can 

be determined which can change the level of support provided. 

1.2 The Council agreed to a Local Council Tax Support Scheme which came into effect on 

1 April 2013.  Our scheme currently provides 80% for working age customers.   

Given the current operating context, it is problematic to fundamentally re-assess any 

Council Tax scheme due to the volatility that is impacting on a number of the objectives 

listed above.   

1.4 The proposed CTS scheme must go through certain steps to comply with the provisions 

stated in the Local Government Finance Act 2012 before it can be adopted by this Council 

as a Billing Authority. Therefore before it is put before Council in January 2021, the views 

of the Committee are sought. 

Impacts of Covid-19 

1.5 Covid-19 has had an impact on the amount of CTS awarded, with significant increases in 

caseload and cost of the scheme – this is detailed further within this section of the report. 

1.6 The caseload increase is a direct result of changes to the economic climate, with existing 

customers requiring more support and new customers making claims for Universal Credit, 

and in-turn Council Tax Support claims.  Prior to Covid-19, the Department for Work and 

Pensions’ intention was to migrate existing customers onto Universal Credit via a 

managed process.  Covid-19 has resulted in this process being fast-tracked and has seen 

a significant increase in claims.   

1.7 The Council has also ensured that those customers who have been affected by Covid and 

therefore in financial difficulties, have had the opportunity to make a claim for Council Tax 

Support. 

1.3 Any scheme has a wide ranging set of competing and sometimes, conflicting objectives 

that need to be considered in any scheme design.  These can be listed as (in no particular 

order): 

− National welfare benefits 

− Council budget capacity 

− Council Tax collection rates 

− Economy 

− Demographics 

− Council objectives 

− Other Council comparisons 

84



 

 
 

1.8 For 2020/21, the cost of the scheme as at 14 September 2020 is £7,271,937.  This is an 

increase from £6,584,129 at the same point in 2019.  This is an increase of £687,808.   

The Council’s share of the total cost for 2020/21 as at 14 September 2020 is £654,474 

based on a 9% share of the total cost. 

1.9 There is also an increase from 1 April 2020 of £422,739 (when the cost of scheme was 

£6,849,198 at that time). 

1.10 The increase in cost is as a direct result of the increase in caseload due to Covid-19.  At 

this date in 2019, the total caseload was 7,641 and has increased by 629 to 8,270.  The 

caseload has not been this high since October 2017 – which was prior to the introduction 

of Universal Credit Full Service. 

1.11 Further details of caseload increase are shown in the table and graph below: 

1st of month Working age Pension age Total 

September 2019 4,190 3,451 7,641 

December 2019 4,223 3,403 7,626 

January 2020 4,259 3,395 7,654 

February 2020 4,282 3,377 7,659 

March 2020 4,290 3,374 7,664 

April 2020 4,377 3,373 7,750 

May 2020 4,753 3,360 8,113 

June 2020 4,955 3,354 8,309 

July 2020 4,992 3,337 8,329 

August 2020 4,980 3,325 8,305 

September 2020 4,950 3,320 8,270 

 

 

1.12 As expected, there was a peak to the caseload in May through to July 2020 but more 

recently has levelled off.  The last 5 months data is providing a pattern for future activity, 

should the local area be moved to tier 3 and when the current furlough scheme 

(coronavirus job retention scheme) comes to an end.  However, it is expected there will be 

a further peak once the furlough scheme expires at the end of November. 

1.13 By using this data, officers are currently forecasting an increase to CTS caseload once the 

furlough scheme comes to an end, and the impact this will have on customer income and 

increase in Universal Credit claims.   

7200

7400

7600

7800

8000

8200

8400

Council Tax Support Caseload

85



 

 
 

1.14 Since April 2020, the overall CTS caseload has increased by 520 customers, which is 

6.7%.  Officers cannot say with any certainty that this will be the maximum increase, due 

to the unknowns, however, if this figure was used from this point forward, there would be 

an overall caseload increase for the remaining period of 2020/21 of 554, bringing the total 

caseload up to 8,824 as at 31 March 2021. 

1.15 A caseload increase during 2020/21 will also impact the cost of the scheme for 2021/22.  

Officers have modelled a range of caseload increases for the 2021/22 scheme and these 

are shown in Appendix 1 to this report. 

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

1.16 The Council’s local scheme has been updated with amendments since the introduction in 

April 2013 to maintain the link with Housing Benefit and the previous Council Tax Benefit 

scheme.   

1.17 The current scheme has the following restrictions for working age customers: - 

• Maximum entitlement capped to 80% 
 

1.18 The current scheme has the following amendments to Council Tax technical restrictions 

for all Council Tax Payers since April 2013: 

• Introduction of additional 100% premium to empty properties over 5 years – total 
premium is 200% (total charge 300%); 

• Care leavers council tax exemption – 100% for those aged between 18th and 25th 
birthday; and 

• Unoccupied discount 100% for the first month. 

Council Tax Support options for 2021-22 

1.19 Based on the current core elements of the existing scheme, various caseload increases 

have been modelled, along with an assumed increased charge in Council Tax of 1.9%.  

These are summarised in Appendix 1, giving an indication of the potential cost to South 

Kesteven. 

1.20 As a billing authority the Council can decide whether or not to amend core elements of its 

scheme each year.  A number of different models have been prepared and these are set 

out at Appendix 1. 

1.21 There will be some technical changes that will still need to be applied to ensure that the 

Council’s scheme complied with the Prescribed Scheme Regulations (covering Universal 

Credit, premiums and discounts).  These details are still outstanding from the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). 

1.22 Technical amendments to the scheme in relation to uprating income, applicable amounts, 

disregards and allowances are to be collated once statutory details have been released by 

the Secretary of State; it is intended that these will be circulated to Members for 

consideration at the Council meeting in January 2021.  There will be no change to the 

adopted policy in the way CTS is calculated for these areas.  Officers have considered if 

there is any need for any transitional arrangements to the revised scheme and concluded 

transitional arrangements are not needed for the 2021/22 scheme. 

1.23 In developing the modelling for each of the Council Tax Support Scheme options several 

assumptions have been made, as follows: 

86



 

 
 

• Uprating Freeze for social security benefits, based on the current national policy – 
however, this may change as a result of ongoing national budget statements.   

• As the Council and major preceptors are likely to set differing levels of Council Tax 
increases it creates a variety of modelling scenarios.  An overall increase on all 
elements of 3.5% has therefore been assumed for modelling purposes, this assumed 
increase is based on the Council Tax increase for 2020/21.  The final cost of the 
scheme will not be known until the overall Council Tax increase is confirmed. The 
modelling does not though take into consideration that the Council’s  percentage share 
of the overall cost of the scheme would slightly reduce if other preceptors increase 
their Band D by a greater percentage than the Council, this would in effect reduce the 
cost of the scheme to the Council. 

• An assumed 3% increase in caseload for 2021/22.   

1.24 The models considered are as follows: 

• Model 1: No change to the current scheme: With no changes to Council Tax or 
caseload; and 

• Model 2:  Maximum award ranging from 70% to 100% (increments of 5% 
increase): With 3.5% Council Tax increase and 3% caseload increase 

1.25 For local context only City of Lincoln Council in Lincolnshire operates a 100% scheme all 

other Councils in Lincolnshire operate the following: 

• South Holland DC 70% 

• Boston BC, East Lindsey DC 75% 

• South Kesteven DC 80% 

• North Kesteven DC, West Lindsey DC 90% 

Continuation of the Discretionary Payment Scheme 

1.26 Discretionary Payments (DP) assist persons who have applied for Council Tax Support 

and who are facing ‘exceptional hardship’ – it is similar to the Discretionary Housing 

Payment for Housing Benefit shortfalls.  A DP provides a further financial contribution 

where an applicant is in receipt of Council Tax Support but the level of support being paid 

by the Council does not meet their full Council Tax liability. 

1.27 The Council is required to provide financial assistance to the most vulnerable residents, 

who have been disproportionately affected by the changes made in 2021 to the Council 

Tax Support Scheme.  Since April 2013, the Council agreed to introduce a Discretionary 

Payment scheme each year, in order to provide a safety net for customers, in receipt of 

Council Tax Support who were experiencing difficulty paying their council tax.  

Discretionary Payments fall within Section 13A(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 and forms part of the Council Tax Support Scheme. 

1.28 The current DP budget is £30,000 and the cost of a DP award is borne solely by South 

Kesteven District Council. As at 14 September 2020, a total of £5,259 DP has been 

awarded and it is forecast to fully commit the budget for the current financial year. 

The DP has supported those customers that have been affected by Covid-19 whereby 

additional support has been requested and applications have bene successful. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

87



 

 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the current scheme in advance of the 2021/22 

financial year. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Options are considered as set out in the report and supporting appendix.  The options 

include the setting of the cap on the maximum entitlement.  This is presented for the 

Committee to consider. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to retain the existing scheme having regard for the overall financial 

constraints of the Authority and the associated increase in the claimant numbers. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 These are set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Following the recommendation from Committee, the scheme will be presented to Council 

in January 2021 for approval. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The actual cost of the discount scheme in 2021/22 will not be known for certain until the 

end of the financial year and will be dependent on the actual caseload in year as well as 

the levels of Council Tax set by the City Council and the major precepting authorities.   

7.2 An indicative range of costs based on various scenarios for 2021/22 is set out in 

Appendix 1. 

7.3 The estimated cost of the scheme, based on current caseload, is taken into consideration 

when calculating the Council’s tax base for the financial year and will impact on the 

estimated Council Tax yield for the year.  Any difference in the actual cost of the discount 

scheme to that estimated in the tax base calculation will be accounted for within the 

Collection Fund and will be taken into account when future years surpluses or deficits are 

declared.   

7.4 The exceptional hardship fund of £20,000, made available during 2020/21, will be 

recommended for continuation for 2021/22. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (England) Regulations 2012, laid 

before Parliament on 22nd November 2012, set out the regulations for a default scheme 

and this was adopted by the Council subject to local policy needs in January 2013.  The 

Secretary of State has issued amendment regulations setting out some changes that must 

be adopted by the Council for pensioners and the Council had also decided in 2013 to 

keep the schemes allowances and premiums in line with those for Housing Benefit for 

working age claimants.  These are incorporated into amendments to the local scheme for 

approval by the Council. 

8.2 The regulations for the scheme proposed to be adopted are to be collated and made 

available for Council in January 2021. 

88



 

 
 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 This will be undertaken depending upon the option recommended for further consideration 

although it is expected that any changes to the current scheme that reduce the current 

maximum cap of 80% will have an adverse impact on specific household income. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Council, along with the other preceptors, bears the risk of the cost of the Council Tax 

Support scheme should caseload increase cause the cost to increase more than 

predicted. 

10.2 Any revisions to the scheme must be approved by 31 January 2021 before the financial 

year begins. 

10.3 The scheme cannot be changed mid-year and therefore it is vital the correct scheme is in 

place. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None. 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Modelling scenarios – Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   28 January 2021 

 

89



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: November 2020 – Council Tax Support 2021/22 scheme 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Model 1: Council Tax Support Scheme ‘no change’ proposal as at 21 October 2020 
 
 

Model 1: No change to current scheme Estimated 
Total Spend 

South 
Kesteven 

proportion of 
Council tax bill 

– 9% 

Difference to 
current cost at 
(£7,271,937) –  
(cost change) 

Current scheme only – No assumptions, no 
change to caseload, no change to Council Tax 
charge 
 

£7,404,143 £666,373 (£132,206) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



Appendix 1: November 2020 – Council Tax Support 2021/22 scheme 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Model 2: Council Tax Support Scheme – various change proposals as at 21 October 2020 - Council Tax with assumed 3.5% 
and assumed 3% caseload increase 
 
 

Model 2: Maximum entitlement award 
 
 

Estimated 
Total Spend 

South Kesteven 
Spend – 9% 

Difference to current 
cost at (£7,271,937) – 

(cost change) 

Model 2a. Maximum entitlement of 100%  
 

£8,256,303 £743,067  (£984,366)  

Model 2b. Maximum entitlement of 95% 
 

£8,123,607 £731,125 (£851,670) 

Model 2c. Maximum entitlement of 90% 
 

£7,991,172 £719,205 (£719,235) 

Model 2d. Maximum entitlement of 85% 
 

£7,858,986 £707,309 (£587,049) 

Model 2e. Maximum entitlement of 80% - current scheme 
 

£7,726,973 £695,428 (£455,036) 

Model 2f. Maximum entitlement of 75% 
 

£7,595,796 £683,622 (£323,859) 

Model 2g. Maximum entitlement of 70% 
 

£7,467,665 £672,090 (£195,728) 

 

92



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

10 November 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

         
  

 

Review of Special Expense Areas 

This report reviews the costs that are currently being charged to the Special Expense Areas and 
examines the guiding principles that are adhered to when allocating costs to the Special Expense 
Areas. 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

Tel: 01476 406210 

Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 28 October 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 2 November 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

2 November 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the guiding principles that are used to 
establish the costs being charged to each Special Expense Area. 

2. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to recommend to Council the abolition of the 
Deepings Special Expense Area with effect from 1 April 2021. 

93

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A provision of the Local Government Act 1992 (section 34 and 35) allows Councils to 

classify by resolution, certain expenditure and income as “special” rather than general, 

indicating that the related tax burden is chargeable against a part rather than the whole of 

the Council’s area. 

1.2 A Special Expense Area (SEA) has a separate tax levy similar to a parish/town council 

precept. It relates to expenses that in other locations within the district are picked up by 

the parish/town council e.g. playing fields, cemeteries. 

1.3 SEA’s are created to avoid “double taxation” where a resident of South Kesteven would 

pay for facilities in their own parish (via their parish precept) and also pay towards another 

facility in another parish through the District Council precept. 

1.4 The District currently has five special expense areas: 

(a) Grantham SEA 

(b) Stamford SEA 

(c) Bourne SEA 

(d) Deepings SEA 

(e) Langtoft SEA 

1.5 At each annual budget setting, the costs directly associated with each of the parish areas 

defined above are charged accordingly.  The overall budget costs are then allocated to 

each of the hereditaments contained in each parish (as defined by the parish boundary) 

and charged depending upon their Council Tax banding. 

1.6 As stated above the budgets that are charged to each parish are allocated based on the 

guiding principles of whether the cost/function/activity would ordinarily be undertaken by a 

parish/town council in that area.  In the case of Grantham, the existence of the SEA is 

more obvious as there is no Town Council and therefore the District Council delivers and 

funds a number of activities in that area.   

1.7 The overriding principle as set out in the prevailing legislation is that functions that are 

carried out by the District Council only in part of its area and that would otherwise be 

carried out by the parish and town council are charged to that local area.  It should be 

noted that the SEA charge forms part of the overall Band D increase calculation so the 

increases in each respective SEA contributes towards the overall SKDC Band D charge. 

1.8 Should there be a desire to reduce or remove the special expense areas, then the Council 

has the option of either transferring the incurred costs to the General Fund or engaging 

with the local council to transfer the responsibility to them.      

Deepings SEA 

1.9 Deepings SEA consists of expenditure relating to sports facilities at Linchfield Road. This 

SEA was created to ensure the costs of creating an outdoor sports amenity were met by 

local tax payers who have the opportunity to utilise the facility. This mirrors the 

arrangement in parishes. However, it is timely to review this, as the usage by the local 

school and clubs has changed since the inception of the SEA. 

1.10 The budgets allocated to the SEA and the Council Tax Band D charge can be seen in the 

table below: 

94



 

 
 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Deepings SEA budget £14,047 £12,654 £12,500 £12,800 

Band D Council Tax 
Charge 

£3.15 £3.24 £3.33 £3.33 

 

1.11 Any budget underspends are transferred at the year end to a specific Deepings SEA 

reserve.  As at 1 April 2020 the balance of Deepings SEA reserve stood at £374. The 

reserve is used to ensure any variances between precepts and actual costs are 

maintained outside the General Fund. 

1.12 The SEA contributes to the grounds’ maintenance of the outdoor sports pitches.  

1.13 The freehold of the pitches are not owned by SKDC and the day to day management of 

the pitches is undertaken by the leisure provider. 

1.14 With the transfer of leisure management to the new leisure provider, LeisureSK Ltd, it is 

an appropriate opportunity to transfer the associated responsibility to the company.  This 

is a logical proposal as the associated income from the lettings will be directly received by 

LeisureSK Ltd.  Therefore, it is recommended that the responsibility transfers from 1 April 

2021 and the Deepings SEA is terminated at that time.   The associated support costs 

would be transferred back to the Council’s General Fund. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The Committee is invited to comment on the proposals set out in the report. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The options are set out in the report. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to retain the SEA’s but remove the Deepings SEA from 1 April 

2021. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The reasons for the preferred option are set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The recommendation that is put forward by the Committee will be presented to Cabinet as 

part of their budget preparations for 2021/22. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 Should the Deepings SEA be removed from April 2021, then the costs currently charged 

to the SEA will be recharged to the General Fund and where appropriate charged to the 

leisure company. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 To ensure the costs currently associated with the Deepings Special Expense Area are re-

charged appropriately to LeisureSK Ltd, details of the council’s expectations and the 

company’s liability should be captured within the governance documents setting out the 

relationship between the Council and the company. 

95



 

 
 

8.2 There are no further legal or governance comments relating to any of the other special 

expense areas 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 None. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None 

15 Appendices 

15.1 N/A 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   28 January 2021 

 

96



2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Adj Band D Adj Band D Adj Band D Adj Band D Indicative

Band D Properties on which charges are based 46,519.3        47,125.7       47918.4 48,122.4          48,844.2       

Relating to Special Expense Areas;  

     Bourne Special Expense Area Charge 5,420.7           5,569.9         5,761.3             5,788.2             5,875.0         

     Deepings Special Expense Area Charge 4,628.4           4,638.6         4,676.7             4,698.7             4,769.2         

     Grantham Special Expense Area Charge 10,742.0        10,970.7       11,115.1          11,178.0          11,345.7       

     Langtoft Special Expense Area Charge 749.7              759.7            758.9                756.9                768.3            

     Stamford Special Expense Area Charge 7,010.0           7,126.6         7,252.4             7,318.6             7,428.4         

Ctax base growth assumption (MTFP) 101.50%

97



Funding Analysis for Special Expense Areas

2019/20

Current 

2020/21

     Bourne

Recreation Ground £11,200 £11,300

Dyke Playing Field £3,700 £3,700

Support Costs £9,519 £9,805

Reserve contribution £7,667 £7,343

Total £32,086 £32,148

Tax Base 5569.9 5761.3

Bourne Special Expense Tax £5.76 £5.58

     Deepings

Linchfield Road Playing Field £12,500 £12,500

Support Costs £365 £376

Reserve contribution £2,582 £1,856

Total £15,447 £14,732
 

Tax Base 4638.6 4676.7

Deepings Special Expense Tax £3.33 £3.15

     Grantham

Grantham Cemetery £39,100 £40,400

Christmas Illuminations £28,100 £28,200

Christmas Fun Day £5,000 £5,000

Grantham Carnival £6,000 £6,000

St George's Day £3,000 £3,000

Remembrance Sunday £500 £500

Barrowby Gate Roundabout £1,100 £1,100

Dysart Park £71,050 £71,050

Queen Elizabeth Park £15,150 £15,150

Wyndham Park £134,100 £140,250

Arnoldfield Playing Field £13,200 £13,700

Harrowby Lane Playing Field £19,400 £19,450

Grantham Football Club Stadium Costs £28,000 £28,000

Support Costs £89,354 £92,035

Reserve contribution £39,037 £56,350

Total £492,091 £520,185

Tax Base 10742.0 11115.1

Grantham Special Expense Tax £45.81 £46.80

     Langtoft 

Langtoft Playing Field & Pavilion £4,100 £4,100

Support Costs £1,133 £1,167

Contribution from Reserve (£375) (£555)

Total £4,858 £4,712

Tax Base 749.7 758.9

Langtoft Special Expense Tax £6.48 £6.21

     Stamford 

Empingham Road Playing Field £16,650 £16,750

Uffington Road Playing Field £29,300 £29,300

Support Costs £13,128 £13,522

Reserve contribution £21,046 £19,407

Total £80,124 £78,979

Tax Base 7010.0 7252.4

Stamford Special Expense Tax £11.43 £10.89

98



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

 
Item 
 

 
Current Issues/Status 
 

 
Date 
 

 
Outcome sought 
 

Channel Shift 
How will the channel shift be supported and delivered, what 
performance will be measured, what targets will be in place, and 
how that will be reported to Committee going forward 

January 
2021  
(date TBC) 
(location 
TBC) 

To make recommendations on 
delivery of channel shift to Cabinet as 
necessary, and decide how progress 
can be reported to Scrutiny going 
forward 

High Street Fund Bid 
To discuss with officers Grantham’s High Street Fund Bid and if 
possible, receive an update at the November meeting. 

To received an Overview of progress 
of the High Street Fund Bid 

Grantham Town Centre 
 

Consideration of business occupancy rates in Grantham, and 
business survival rates, with additional consideration to post 
COVID-19 recovery and the changing face of the high street 

To feedback to SKDC departments 
and make any recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary on suggested 
changes to policy and support 

Economic 
Development Strategy 
and role of InvestSK 

A consideration of SKDC Economic Development Strategy, 
including any issues associated with COVID-19 business 
recovery, and the role Invest SK will play in this development 

To feed recommendations back to 
Invest SK and/or Cabinet as 
necessary 

Data Protection Policy 
Review 

Local choice consultation with OSC on the Data Protection 
Policy Review – to be considered by Cabinet on 12 January 
2021 

To update Cabinet verbally with any 
comments or suggested amendments 
to the Policy Review 

Local Priority 
Reserves 

Review of the principles and policies surrounding Local Priority 
Reserves, considering various available options prepared by 
Officers for the Committee to progress 

To make recommendations relating to 
any proposed or changing policy to 
Cabinet as necessary 

Leisure Services 
Workshop 

To agree a date and volunteers for a joint workshop with the 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

To agree a date and membership 

Q3 Financials 
Q3 Performance 

Quarterly reporting. 
23 
February 
2020 
(location 
TBC) 

Feedback to Council departments on 
progress, performance and any 
issues 

Use of Reserves 
Review of the principles and policies surrounding Reserves, 
different types of Reserves, and the use of Reserves. 

To make recommendations relating to 
any proposed or changing policy to 
Cabinet as necessary 

99

A
genda Item

 11



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

 
Item 
 

 
Current Issues/Status 
 

 
Date 
 

 
Outcome sought 
 

Development 
Infrastructure and 
Housing Delivery Test 
Action Plan 

External companies will be invited to attend to Committee to 
provide reassurances regarding infrastructure support for 
proposed developments in the District 
 
Review of progress against the action plan agreed by Cabinet 
on 09/07/2019 

Constructive conversation and 
engagement with external 
organisations regarding support and 
preparations for developments, 
feeding back to organisations, 
Council departments and Cabinet as 
necessary 
To consider any successes or issues 
with the delivery plan, feedback to 
Cabinet and Council departments, 
and make recommendations for 
meeting targets as necessary 

Q4 Financials 
Q4 Performance 

Quarterly reporting 
27 April 
2021 
(Location 
TBC) 

Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet 

2021/2022 Work 
Programme, review of 
actions/learning  

To consider items for the 2021/22 work programme, and 
development of outcomes and learnings to form the annual 
Scrutiny Report. 

Recommendations as necessary to 
Cabinet 

  

100



Unscheduled Items 

Car Parking Review 
A review of the supply, demand and charging policies and 
principles for town centre parking across the District 

TBC 
To be confirmed upon return to 
business as usual 

Transformation and 
Change 

TBC TBC TBC 

 
 

  

101



REMIT 
The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

 Business rate relief 

 Business transformation 

 Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure 

 Charitable rate relief 

 Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

 Large-scale development projects 

 Shop front designs and funding 

 Street furniture 

 Street parking permits 

 Town centre developments and partnerships 

 Budget monitoring 

 Review of outturn 

 Fees and charges 

 Budget setting 

 Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

 Performance reporting 

 Data protection policy 

 Customer access strategy 
Membership 9 

102



 

 
CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet  
1 December 2020 to 30 November 2021 

 
 
At its meetings, the Cabinet may make Key Decisions and Non-Key Decisions. It may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework. 
 
A Key Decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely: 
 

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard 
to the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (for these purposes, South Kesteven 
District Council has agreed £200,000 as the threshold at which a decision will be considered significant); or 

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards. 
 
A Non-Key Decision is one that is not a Key Decision. 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
The Forward Plan will be circulated to all Overview and Scrutiny Committees and be considered at each meeting as Members set 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programmes. Scrutiny members will be able to pick from the Forward Plan, those items 
relevant to their remit that they wish to scrutinise. 

103



 
Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council  
 

Summary Date Action Contact 

Housing Allocation Policy 2021 to include Choice Based Lettings - Key Decision 

To consider the policy and 
recommendations from the Rural and 
Communities OSC 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To adopt a refreshed 
Housing Allocation Policy 
incorporating a Choice based 
Lettings Scheme 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Interim Assistant Director of Housing 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 60 80 
E-mail: chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Asset Management Strategy 2021-2026 - Key Decision 

To consider the strategy 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To adopt a Housing Asset 
management Strategy 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Interim Assistant Director of Housing 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 60 80 
E-mail: chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Leisure Centre Proposals - Key Decision 

Consider leisure improvement proposals 
and business cases 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To approve proposals 
 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Growth 
and Leisure (Councillor Barry Dobson) 
 
Head of Leisure 
Tel: 01476 40 62 39 
E-mail: Karen.Whitfield@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104



Summary Date Action Contact 

Council Tax Base 2021/22 - Budget 

To determine the Council Tax base to form 
the basis of the 2021/22 budget proposals 
to be recommended to Council 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To agree the Council Tax 
base 2021/22 which will form 
the basis of the budget 
proposals for the year 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Councillor Adam Stokes) 
 
Interim Director of Finance, Section 151 Officer 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 63 75 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 

Draft Budget Proposals 2021/22 - Budget 

To consider the draft budget proposals for 
2021/22. 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for 2021/22 for 
consultation 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Councillor Adam Stokes) 
 
Interim Director of Finance, Section 151 Officer 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 63 75 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Review of the Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement - Key Decision 

To consider any changes to the Policy 
Statement  
 

1 Dec 2020 
 
Council  
28 Jan 
2021 
 

To recommend any changes 
to Council 
 

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Councillor Dr Peter Moseley) 
 
Head of Public Protection 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 63 19 
E-mail: a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Food Waste Collection - Key Decision 

To provide an update on food waste 
collection 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To make decisions around 
food waste collection within 
South Kesteven and any 
consequential budget 
changes 
 

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Councillor Dr Peter Moseley) 
 
Assistant Director, Commercial and Operations 
Tel: 01476 40 62 01 
E-mail: i.yates@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

105



Summary Date Action Contact 

Proposed Development brief for Land at Stamford North - Key Decision 

To consider the proposed development 
brief for land at Stamford North prior to 
consultation 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land 
at Stamford North for 
consultation 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Head of Planning Policy 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

JC Decaux Bus Stops - Key Decision 

JC Decaux have given notice to SKDC 
about their intention to withdraw their 
existing bus stops, largely in Grantham, and 
SKDC has some options about whether or 
not it wishes to adopt these bus stops 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To make a decision around 
the adoption or otherwise of 
the existing JC Decaux bus 
stops and consequential 
budget changes 
 

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Councillor Dr Peter Moseley) 
 
Corporate Operations Lead 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 64 10 
E-mail: p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Procurement of New Build Works - Key Decision 

To seek approval for the award of a JCT 
Design and Build Contract for the 
construction of 12 Council properties to D 
Brown Building Contractors Limited 
 

1 Dec 2020 
 

To approve the awarding of a 
contract to  carry out the 
development of 12 Council 
properties, using the Blue 
Skies Framework 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Development Manager Housing 
Tel: 01476 40 6259 
E-mail: g.harte@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions - Key Decision 

To make strategic regeneration acquisitions 
 
Information relating to this decision is 
exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended because it contains information 
which relate to the financial or business 
affairs of an individual or an organisation 

Dec 2020 
 

 
 

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke) 
 
Tel: 01476 40 60 80 
E-mail: karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

106



Summary Date Action Contact 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy - Key Decision 

To consider any proposed changes 
following consultation 
 

12 Jan 
2021 
 

To approve the policy 
 

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Councillor Dr Peter Moseley) 
 
Head of Public Protection 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 63 19 
E-mail: a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Rectory Farm - Supplementary Planning Document - Key Decision 

To consider the Rectory Farm 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following consultation on a draft document 
 

12 Jan 
2021 
 
Council 
28 Jan 
2021 
 

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in 
respect to Rectory Farm 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Special Projects Manager 
Tel: 01476 40 61 64 
E-mail: p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Budget Proposals 2021/22 - Budget 

To agree the budget proposals for 2021/22. 
 

12 Jan 
2021 
 
Council 
1 Mar 2021 
 

To recommend the budget 
for 2021/22 to Council 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Councillor Adam Stokes) 
 
Interim Director of Finance, Section 151 Officer 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 63 75 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

South Kesteven District Council's Carbon Reduction Plan - Key Decision 

To consider the Council’s carbon reduction 
plans 
 

12 Jan 
2021 
 

To make a decision around 
the Council’s carbon 
reduction plans and make 
any consequential budget 
changes 
 

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Councillor Dr Peter Moseley) 
 
Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations 
Tel: 01476 40 63 44 
E-mail: gary.smith@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 

107



Summary Date Action Contact 

Pay Policy Statement - Legislative 

To receive recommendations from the 
Employment Committee on the Council’s 
Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 

Council  
1 Mar 2021 
 

To adopt the Pay Policy 
 

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke) 
 
Head of Organisational Development and 
Change 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 61 32 
E-mail: e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document - Final - Key Decision 

To consider the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following public consultation 
 

20 May 
2021 
 

To approve the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning 
Document 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Head of Planning Policy 
Tel: Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

108


	Agenda
	4 Action notes of the meeting held on 22 September 2020
	5 Updates from previous meeting
	6 Quarter 2 Financials
	Appendix A - 2020-21 General Fund Revenue Summary
	Appendix B - 2020-21 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis
	Appendix C - 2020-21 Significant Income Dashboard
	Appendix D - 2020-21 General Fund Capital
	Appendix E - 2020-21 General Fund Reserves
	Appendix F - 2020-21 HRA Revenue Summary
	Appendix G - HRA Capital Programme Summary
	Appendix H - New Build Programme
	Appendix I - 2020-21 HRA Reserves
	Appendix J - Cash Flow Forecast 2020-21
	Appendix K - Finance Risk Register

	7 Quarter 2 Performance
	Appendix 1 Rents
	Appendix 2 Council Tax
	Appendix 3 NNDR
	Appendix 4 Planning Process
	Appendix 5 Planning House Builds
	Appendix 6 Complaints

	8 Invest to Save
	ITS Business Case Template

	9 Council Tax Support Scheme
	SKDC - Council Tax Support Scheme 2021-22 - Appendix 1

	10 Special Expense Areas
	SEA Band Ds summary

	11 Work programme
	FP 1 Dec 2020 to 30 Nov 2021v2


